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1                      PROCEEDINGS

2           JUDGE JONES:  Good morning.  Call for

3 hearing in docket no. 12-0560.  This is titled in

4 part Rock Island Clean Line LLC, Petition for an

5 Order granting Rock Island Clean Line LLC a

6 Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity

7 pursuant to Section 8-406 the Public Utilities Act

8 and other relief.

9        At this time we will once again take the

10 appearances orally for the record.  As before, if

11 you entered an appearance previously be it

12 yesterday or at an earlier hearing, you need not

13 restate your contact information unless it has

14 changed or you simply prefer to do that.  We will

15 start with the appearance or appearances on behalf

16 of Rock Island Clean Line LLC.

17           MR. MACBRIDE:  Thank you, Judge.

18 Appearing on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line LLC,

19 Owen MacBride, Diana Bowman and Katherine Cisneros.

20 Same address as previously given.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Commission

22 staff?

23           MR. OLIVERO:  Thank you, your Honor.

24 Appearing on behalf of the staff witnesses of the
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1 Illinois Commerce Commission, Jessica Cardoni,

2 Christine Ericson, Matthew Harvey and James

3 Olivero.  Thank you.

4           JUDGE JONES:  And working our way along

5 the table?

6           MR. BERNET:  On behalf of Commonwealth

7 Edison, Richard Bernet.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

9           MR. FOSCO:  Also on behalf of

10 Commonwealth Edison Company, Carmen L. Fosco with

11 Rooney, Rippie & Ratnaswamy, LLC.

12           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Mr. Shay?

13           MR. SHAY:  On behalf of the Illinois

14 Landowners Alliance, William Shay and Jonathan

15 Phillips of the firm Shay, Kepple, Phillips.

16           MR. DAVIS:  On behalf of the Illinois

17 Farm Bureau Chuck Davis and Laura Harmon, and our

18 contact information is the same as provided before.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are

20 there other appearances to be entered by those who

21 are physically present in the Springfield room this

22 morning?

23        Let the record show there are not, at least

24 at this time.
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1        Turning to those who are in the Chicago

2 office, may we have the appearances, please?

3           MR. STALKER:  Good morning, Judge.  Clark

4 Stalker on behalf of Commonwealth Edison.

5 Appearance made yesterday.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are

7 there others?

8        Let the record show there are not, at least

9 right now.

10        Pursuant to prior interparty communications

11 there was a schedule of witnesses for presentation,

12 cross-examination today.  Is that list still the

13 same?

14           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes.  No changes.

15           JUDGE JONES:  With regard to Wednesday,

16 are there still communications among the parties

17 with respect to whether all of those witnesses will

18 be subject to cross?

19           MR. MACBRIDE:  Are there still some

20 unknown?

21        Well, I believe Mr. Shay and I are going to

22 agree that Mr. Rosengren, there won't be any cross

23 for Mr. Rosengren.  That's the only potential

24 agreement I'm aware of at this point.
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1           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Well, I will

2 assume that other communications may occur since

3 the next hearing is not until Wednesday.  As

4 indicated previously, in the event that parties do

5 not have cross for some of those witnesses on

6 Wednesday, then assuming no objections, their

7 testimony and exhibits will be permitted to go in

8 by motion and affidavit.  The motion may be made

9 while at the hearing or in writing if counsel is

10 not present.  But since that is still several days

11 away and there are ways for the parties to

12 communicate among themselves with respect to that,

13 we will kind of leave it at that for now.

14        Anything else with respect to that, that the

15 parties wish to speak to?

16        Okay.  Let the record show there is not.  So

17 I believe we are ready for the, for the first

18 witness in today's schedule.  So is there a witness

19 to be called at this time?

20           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes, Rock Island calls

21 Mr. Rudolph Wynter to testify.

22        JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Sir, please raise your

23 right hand and be sworn.

24
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1                    RUDOLPH WYNTER,

2 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

3 as follows:

4           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

5 Please be seated.  As before, if anybody is having

6 any trouble hearing anybody else, just let us know.

7 We will figure out what we need to do to get

8 somebody closer to the microphone or make some

9 other arrangements so everybody can follow along.

10        Mr. MacBride?

11           MR. MACBRIDE:  Thank you.

12                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY MR. MACBRIDE:

14        Q.  Would you please state your name and

15 business address for the record?

16        A.  Rudolph Wynter.  Business address is No.

17 1, MetroTech Center, Brooklyn, New York.

18        Q.  Could you spell your last name for the

19 reporter, please?

20        A.  W-Y-N-T-E-R.

21        Q.  Thank you.  Mr. Wynter, who is your

22 employer, and what is your present position?

23        A.  My employer is National Grid.  My

24 current position is President of our FERC-regulated
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1 businesses.

2        Q.   You also have a position in the Clean

3 Line Energy Partners organization?

4        A.  I'm on the board of Clean Line Energy

5 Partners.

6        Q.  Have you prepared testimony that you

7 wish to offer in this proceeding?

8        A.  Yes, I have.

9        Q.  Do you have before you a document that

10 is titled Surrebuttal Testimony of Rudolph L.

11 Wynter on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line LLC

12 which has been identified as Rock Island Exhibit

13 12.0?

14        A.  Yes, I do.

15        Q.  Does that document consist of a cover

16 page followed by 14 pages of written questions and

17 answers?

18        A.  Yes, it does.

19        Q.  Is Rock Island 12.0 the testimony you

20 wish to offer in this proceeding?

21        A.  Yes, it is.

22        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

23 to make to that exhibit?

24        A.  No, I do not.
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1        Q.  If I were to ask you at this hearing the

2 questions set forth on Rock Island Exhibit 12.0,

3 would your answers be the same?

4        A.  Yes, they would.

5          JUDGE JONES:  One moment, please.  Thank

6 you.

7           MR. MACBRIDE:  We offer Mr. Wynter's

8 Exhibit 12.0 into the record and offer Mr. Wynter

9 for cross-examination.

10           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any

11 response to that motion?

12           MR. BERNET:  No objection.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that

14 Rock Island Exhibit No. 12.0 sponsored by

15 Mr. Wynter consisting of surrebuttal testimony is

16 hereby admitted into the evidentiary record as

17 filed on e-Docket on November 12th, 2013.

18                  (Rock Island Exhibit No. 12.0

19                  admitted.)

20           JUDGE JONES:  The witness is tendered for

21 cross-examination.  I believe there are some

22 parties who, through their counsel, have

23 cross-examination for Mr. Wynter.  Who would like

24 to lead off?
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1           MR. BERNET:  Your Honor, Commonwealth

2 Edison will go first.

3           JUDGE JONES:  All right, Mr. Bernet.

4                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

5 QUESTIONS BY MR. BERNET:

6        Q.  Good morning, Mr. Wynter.  My name is

7 Richard Bernet.  I represent Commonwealth Edison

8 Company in this proceeding.

9        A.  Good morning.

10        Q.  Just as a preliminary matter, if I ask a

11 question you don't understand or is unclear to you,

12 just let me know.  I will do my best to rephrase.

13        A.  Okay.

14        Q.  Mr. Wynter, your testimony goes into

15 great detail about National Grid's business,

16 doesn't it?

17        A.  Yes, it does.

18        Q.  And National Grid's extensive experience

19 with high voltage transmission lines?

20        A.  That is correct.

21        Q.  And National Grid's experience in

22 building, owning and operating high voltage

23 transmission lines in the US, UK and Europe?

24        A.  In the US and the UK.  Not in Europe.
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1        Q.  National Grid does not provide

2 assistance to Clean Line under any consulting or

3 similar agreement, does it?

4        A.  No, it does not.

5        Q.  And it is a company called Grid America

6 Holdings, LLC that actually wrote the check to

7 Clean Line in this case, right?

8        A.  Grid America Holdings is a subsidiary

9 that we use as an investment vehicle.

10        Q.  Right.  But Grid America Holdings, LLC

11 is the company that wrote the 40 or committed to

12 the $40 million investment in Clean Line, right?

13        A.  It is a wholly owned subsidiary of

14 National Grid.

15        Q.  I didn't ask you if it was a subsidiary,

16 I asked you if they wrote the check?

17        A.  Yes.

18        Q.  So technically it is Grid America

19 Holdings that is the investor in Clean Line, right?

20        A.  National Grid is the investor in Clean

21 Line.

22        Q.  But National Grid didn't write the

23 check?

24        I will withdraw that.
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1        Your testimony does not discuss a single

2 project constructed, managed or operated by Grid

3 America Holdings, does it?

4        A.  No, it does not.

5        Q.  In fact, your testimony doesn't discuss

6 that company at all except for the fact that it's

7 the company that wrote the check?

8        A.  That is correct.

9        Q.  Now, Grid America has contributed $25

10 million to date to Clean Line, right?

11        A.  That is correct.

12        Q.  And Clean Line has the ability to call

13 another $15 million, right?

14        A.  That is correct.

15        Q.  That means they get to get it without

16 any further documentation?

17        A.  They do a cash call, the board approves

18 it, the board of Clean Line, and then National Grid

19 would release those funds.

20        Q.  Beyond that Grid America has not

21 committed to invest another dollar in Clean Line,

22 right?

23        A.  Not at the present time.

24        Q.  And beyond that Grid America has not
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1 committed to invest another dollar in Rock Island?

2        A.  National Grid and Grid America makes

3 direct investments in Clean Line, not in the

4 individual projects.

5        Q.  And not to the subsidiaries?

6        A.  Which subsidiaries?

7        Q.  Rock Island.

8        A.  No, National Grid makes the investments

9 in Clean Line, and then the board determines

10 capital allocations, the board of Clean Line.

11        Q.  And National Grid has not committed to

12 invest another dollar in Clean Line, right?

13        A.  I believe there is an information

14 request that asks and answers that very question,

15 and I believe, if you let me turn to it --

16        Q.  Well, I am just asking you do you know?

17        A.  Yes, and it is question 7.17.  It says

18 National Grid is committed to invest $40 million in

19 Clean Line.  National Grid is not committed to make

20 any additional investments in Clean Line or Rock

21 Island, nor has it decided not to make any

22 additional investments in Clean Line or Rock

23 Island.

24           MR. BERNET:  Your Honor, I'll move to
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1 strike that, that answer.  I didn't ask the

2 question about a data request, I asked him a simple

3 question.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

5           MR. MACBRIDE:  The data request asked

6 essentially the same question that Mr. Bernet posed

7 to the witness, so the witness simply repeated the

8 answer that it had been given to that question in

9 the data request.

10           MR. BERNET:  Excuse me.  Doesn't matter

11 that there is a data request.  I asked him a

12 specific question.  He is not entitled to read into

13 the record stuff that's in a data request that I

14 have not asked him about.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Can I have the answer read

16 back?

17                  (The reporter read the question

18                  and answer.)

19           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  The last

20 question was I am asking you, do you know.

21           MR. BERNET:  I will ask the question

22 again.  I will ask it again.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Go ahead.  You can re-ask

24 the question.
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1        Q.  National Grid has not committed to

2 invest another dollar in Clean Line; isn't that

3 right?

4        A.  We are not at a decision point yet to

5 make further investments.

6        Q.  So that's a yes, right?

7        A.  Yes.

8        Q.  I'd like to direct your attention to

9 your direct or to your surrebuttal testimony

10 beginning at line 156.  Let me know when you get

11 there.

12        A.  Yes, I am here.

13        Q.  So is it your understanding that Ms.

14 Lapson -- Ms. Lapson is a witness for ComEd, right?

15        A.  That is correct.

16        Q.  Ms. Lapson's position is that Rock

17 Island has not demonstrated that Rock Island is

18 capable of financing the $1.8 billion it will cost

19 to construct the line without adverse financial

20 consequences to Rock Island or its customers.

21 That's her position, isn't it?

22        A.  That is correct.

23        Q.  And in response to that, you state that

24 National Grid believes that Rock Island is capable
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1 of obtaining financing for the construction, right?

2        A.  That is correct.

3        Q.  And you're familiar with Section 8-406

4 of the Public Utilities Act in this case, right?

5        A.  Somewhat familiar, yes.

6        Q.  And that, the provision in the statute

7 that your testimony relates to is whether or not

8 Rock Island is capable of financing the

9 construction, right?

10        A.  Yes.

11        Q.  The language in the statute isn't

12 capable of obtaining financing, is it?

13        A.  I'm not exactly sure what the exact

14 language is in the statute.

15           MR. BERNET:  May I approach?

16           JUDGE JONES:  Yes.

17        Q.  I'm handing you, Mr. Wynter -- I have

18 not marked this.  I'm handing you what I will

19 represent to you is a copy of Section 8-406 of the

20 Illinois Public Utilities Act.  I would like to

21 direct your attention to the bottom of the first

22 page, sorry, top of the second page.

23        Do you see the language after the number 2

24 that the utility is capable of efficiently managing
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1 and supervising the construction -- sorry, number

2 3.  That the utility is capable of financing the

3 proposed construction without significant

4 financial, without significant adverse financial

5 consequences for the utility or its customers?  Did

6 I read that right?

7        A.  Yes, you did.

8        Q.  National Grid is so confident that Rock

9 Island will obtain financing that it has made what

10 you call a substantial investment based on that

11 conclusion, right?

12        A.  That is correct.

13        Q.  What do you mean by substantial?

14        A.  What I meant was our initial investment

15 of up to $40 million.

16        Q.  But that $40 million really isn't $40

17 million, is it?

18        A.  That $40 million is $40 million.

19        Q.  It is not $40 million designated

20 specifically for this project, is it?

21        A.  It is an investment in Clean Line

22 Energy, and then the board allocates it across the

23 various projects.

24        Q.  In fact, what, what Clean Line plans to
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1 do with that $40 million is invest it in four high

2 voltage transmission projects; isn't that right?

3        A.  All the funds from the investors are

4 allocated across all of the projects going forward.

5        Q.  But it is four transmission lines,

6 right?

7        A.  That is correct.

8        Q.  One of those transmission lines is the

9 Plains & Eastern Clean Line, right?

10        A.  That is correct.

11        Q.  And do you know how long that

12 transmission line is?

13        A.  I believe that project is approximately

14 700 miles long.

15        Q.  And do you know how much it is going to

16 cost to construct that line?

17        A.  I believe that cost is approximately $2

18 billion.

19        Q.  And another one of the projects that $40

20 million is going to be used for is the Grain Belt

21 Express Clean Line, right?

22        A.  That is correct.

23        Q.  And how long is that line?

24        A.  I believe it is about the same
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1 approximate length as the prior.

2        Q.  Is it -- sorry.  Sorry, I didn't hear

3 the end of that?

4        A.  I said it is approximately the same

5 length, just under 700 miles.

6        Q.  And how much is it going to cost to

7 construct that line?

8        A.  I believe that estimate is also

9 approximately $2 billion.

10        Q.  And another project that that $40

11 million is going to be used for is going to be --

12 well, Rock Island we know -- the Centennial West

13 Clean Line, right?

14        A.  That is correct.

15        Q.  How long is that line?

16        A.  That is a couple hundred miles.  I don't

17 recall the exact mileage of that project.

18        Q.  What is the approximate cost to

19 construct that line?

20        A.  That one is in the hundreds of millions

21 of dollars.

22        Q.  Now, in your testimony you don't explain

23 to the Commission that Rock Island is only going to

24 get a fraction of that money, right?
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1        A.  I do not believe I do.

2        Q.  You don't identify in your testimony

3 that the Commission -- that the, that the money is

4 going to be split between these three other

5 projects?

6        A.  No, I do not.

7        Q.  You don't inform the Commission about

8 the length of those other three projects or their

9 cost?

10        A.  No, I do not.

11        Q.  Do you recall when Grid America provided

12 the $25 million -- let me back up.

13        Grid America provided $25 million, and then,

14 and then the 15 million will come later, right?

15        A.  That is correct.

16        Q.  Do you know when Clean Line or when Grid

17 America provided the $25 million?

18        A.  I believe it was between the time of the

19 initial signing of the agreement and some period up

20 to a few months ago.  I don't recall if it was one

21 check or it was done in a couple of different cash

22 calls.

23        Q.  Well, if I told you that it was 12.5

24 million on January 25th, 2013 and 12.5 million on
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1 September 4th, 2013, would you accept that subject

2 to check?

3        A.  Yes, I would.

4        Q.  And, in fact, as of October 31st, 2013,

5 we know that Clean Line has not invested all of

6 that 25 million that Grid America provided in Rock

7 Island, right?

8        A.  Repeat the question, please.

9        Q.  As of October 31st, 2013, we know Clean

10 Line has not invested all of that 25 million in the

11 Rock Island project, right?

12        A.  That is correct.

13        Q.  Do you know how much has been invested

14 specifically in the Rock Island project?

15        A.  Of National Grid funds?

16        Q.  Yes.

17        A.  Or how much -- I don't know of National

18 Grid's funds how much was specifically put into the

19 Rock Island project.

20        Q.  But you know it is not 25 million?

21        A.  That's correct.

22        Q.  Do you know if it is 5 million?

23        A.  National Grid invests in Clean Line as

24 well as the other investors.  Clean Line then takes



342

1 those pool of dollars and, with board approval,

2 allocates it to the various projects.  I can't say

3 specifically which dollars of National Grid went to

4 which project.

5        Q.  So Clean Line has not advised you of

6 that?

7        A.  Our intention was to invest in the

8 portfolio of projects, and we wanted to see what

9 was being invested across all of those projects.

10 We do know exactly how much capital is invested in

11 each project.  It is hard to say which dollar was

12 National Grid's in each project.

13           MR. BERNET:  Well, may I approach, your

14 Honor?

15           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

16           MR. BERNET:  I didn't mark this.  I don't

17 know how you want to do this.  Do we write on here

18 what the exhibit numbers are?  What is your

19 preference?

20           JUDGE JONES:  You can do that.  If it

21 gets admitted into the record, of course, you know,

22 we do not know at this time, but then it will be

23 filed on e-Docket anyway.

24           MR. BERNET:  Okay.  All right.  So I'm
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1 going to mark this as ComEd Cross Exhibit, Cross

2 Exhibit 2.

3                  (ComEd Cross Exhibit No. 2

4                  marked for identification.)

5        Q.  I have handed you, Mr. Wynter, a data

6 request response that ComEd sent to Clean or ComEd

7 sent to Rock Island in this case.  It is ComEd

8 7.18, and in the answer that was provided by Rock

9 Island, it says as of October 31 --

10           MR. MACBRIDE:  Excuse me.  This is a

11 confidential response.

12           MR. BERNET:  Oh.  We can hold this to the

13 end if that is -- how would you like to -- I don't

14 think I have any other confidential --

15           JUDGE JONES:  If there is some way to ask

16 it without specifically giving the number itself

17 that's confidential, we can do it that way.  That,

18 I guess, has some benefits.  If we do need to go

19 into in camera, we will.  We will have to clear the

20 room.

21           MR. BERNET:  Can we go off the record for

22 just a second?

23           JUDGE JONES:  Yes.  Off the record for

24 that purpose.
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1                  (Discussion off the record.)

2           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Back on the record.

3 An off-the-record discussion for the purposes

4 indicated.

5        What is the status, then, of your plan to

6 ask questions in that document?

7           MR. BERNET:  What I would like to do,

8 your Honor, unfortunately I didn't, I didn't -- I'm

9 not exactly sure if I have other confidential

10 questions.  So my preference would be -- and I did

11 consult with counsel.  The question I want to ask

12 this witness is a confidential -- is part of the

13 confidential piece of the answer.  So my preference

14 would be to hold this until the end, and then if I

15 have other confidential questions, we can do it all

16 at once.

17        JUDGE JONES:  Is it just the dollar number

18 that's confidential or is it beyond that, the

19 supposed confidentiality?

20        Mr. MacBride, do you want to speak to that?

21           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yeah, the sentence that

22 includes the confidential -- the sentence that

23 includes the number, so the second sentence in

24 the --
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1           JUDGE JONES:  The entire sentence you

2 think is confidential?

3           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yeah.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Not just the number?

5           MR. MACBRIDE:  Well, it is the number,

6 the specific number.

7           JUDGE JONES:  It is the number.  Well,

8 can you ask the question without -- can you refer

9 to the number but without identifying the number?

10           MR. BERNET:  Well, I want to get the

11 number into the record.

12           JUDGE JONES:  Are you going to put the DR

13 request in the record?  Is that your plan?  Because

14 it will have the number in it.

15           MR. MACBRIDE:  Right.

16           MR. BERNET:  But I want to ask this

17 witness about it, too, though.  Well, okay.

18           JUDGE JONES:  We will do this.  If that's

19 what we need to do, we will.  It requires us to

20 clear the room.

21           MR. BERNET:  Yeah.  No, no, I understand.

22 If there is no objection --

23           JUDGE JONES:  -- start the new in camera

24 part and bring it back.
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1           MR. BERNET:  I want to go back to

2 something you said a minute ago.  If there is no

3 objection to me putting that data request into

4 evidence and we can -- you know, it will be marked

5 confidential, then I won't ask any questions about

6 it.

7           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yeah, we are not going to

8 object.

9           MR. BERNET:  Okay.  Then I will hold it

10 and I will move for the admission of that at the

11 end of my, at the end of my cross.

12           JUDGE JONES:  Right.  You can, you can

13 move it now, or you can wait until the end.

14           MR. BERNET:  I will wait until the end.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Whatever your preference

16 is.  Thank you.

17           MR. BERNET:  Thank you.

18        Q.  Okay.  Mr. Wynter, you can set that

19 aside.

20        One of the things that the Commission must

21 conclude in this case is that Rock Island is

22 capable of financing construction without adverse

23 consequences to Rock Island or its customers,

24 right?
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1        A.  That is correct.

2        Q.  And Rock Island -- there are no

3 customers right now, are there?

4        A.  Right now there are not.

5        Q.  Referring back to the statutory

6 provision, your testimony relates to the, one of

7 the elements that Rock Island must prove in this

8 case, and that element is that the utility is

9 capable of financing the proposed construction

10 without, without adverse financial consequences for

11 the utility or its customers, right?

12        A.  That is correct.

13        Q.  And that's an element that Rock Island

14 must prove right now to get the certificate, right?

15        A.  That is correct.

16        Q.  So in order to conclude that Rock Island

17 is entitled to a certificate, the Commission must

18 be able to conclude based solely on the record in

19 this case that Rock Island is capable of financing

20 all $1.8 billion of construction costs, right?

21           MR. MACBRIDE:  Objection.  Calls for a

22 legal conclusion by Mr. Wynter.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

24           MR. BERNET:  The witness is testifying
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1 that extensively that based on his experience, the

2 Commission should reach the conclusion that

3 National or that Rock Island is capable of

4 financing the construction.  There is legal

5 conclusions all over his testimony.

6           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  I think the

7 witness has opened the door on the line of

8 questioning, so we will ask him to answer that

9 question if he understands the question and if he

10 has an answer.

11        A.  Can you repeat the question, please?

12        Q.  Sure.  In order to conclude that Rock

13 Island is entitled to a certificate, the Commission

14 must be able to conclude, based solely on the

15 record in this case, that Rock Island is capable of

16 financing all $1.8 billion of construction costs,

17 right?

18        A.  That is correct.

19        Q.  It is not a determination that occurs at

20 some point in the future, it is a determination

21 that the ICC must make based on the evidence that

22 gets into the record by next Friday?

23           MR. MACBRIDE:  I have the same objection,

24 Judge.  This is calling for a legal conclusion.
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1 The witness is testifying to factual information

2 and opinion.  He is not offering legal opinions as

3 to what the Commission must find.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Same ruling.  So if you

5 understand the question and if you have an answer,

6 then please provide it.

7        A.  I have an answer.  My testimony stated

8 that it is capable of obtaining financing, and we

9 do believe and I do believe Rock Island is capable

10 of obtaining financing.

11        Q.  Right.  I am not asking you that, I am

12 asking you about when that has to be decided?

13        A.  I do not know when that has to be

14 decided.

15        Q.  You don't know when the Commission has

16 to make a decision in this case?

17        A.  I know the Commission has to make a

18 decision in this case, yes, that's correct.

19        Q.  And that decision is going to be based

20 on the evidence in the record, right?

21        A.  That is correct.

22        Q.  And do you know the evidence in this

23 case, the record evidence in this case will close

24 next Friday?
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1        A.  That is correct.

2        Q.  So the cost to construct the line is

3 approximately 1.8 billion, right?

4        A.  That is correct.

5        Q.  Your testimony doesn't discuss the gap,

6 the $1.76 billion gap between the 40 million that

7 National Grid has contributed and the amount

8 necessary to build a line, does it?

9        A.  No, it does not.

10        Q.  And do you have any idea what percentage

11 of $1.8 billion $40 million is?

12        A.  Yes, I do.

13        Q.  How much?

14        A.  It is approximately 4%.

15        Q.  Your testimony doesn't mention any

16 legally binding commitment by anyone to fund the

17 other 96% of the cost of the line, does it?

18        A.  It only mentions obtaining financing.

19        Q.  But it doesn't mention any legally

20 binding commitment to cover that gap?

21        A.  No legally binding commitment.

22        Q.  In fact, you're advising the Commission

23 that it's premature for them to reach a conclusion

24 on whether Rock Island is capable of financing the



351

1 construction, aren't you?

2        A.  I don't understand the question.

3        Q.  Let me direct your attention to your

4 testimony at line 232.  Lines 232 to 234 you're

5 telling the Commission there that it is premature

6 for them to reach a conclusion, right?

7        A.  Let me review those lines. No, that is

8 not correct.

9        Q.  So it is not premature for the

10 Commission to make that decision?

11        A.  No, it is not.

12        Q.  What do you mean by premature in that

13 sentence?

14        A.  I mean that it is -- let me read the

15 sentence first.  There is financing available to

16 construct a project of this scale, but it is

17 premature to expect that this financing be arranged

18 at this point in the project's development.

19        Q.  It is your opinion that the real issue

20 is whether investors believe the project is viable

21 and an economically attractive investment, right?

22        A.  Say that again.  Please repeat the

23 question.

24        Q.  It is your opinion that the real issue
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1 is whether investors believe the project is viable

2 and a economically attractive investment?

3        A.  I believe that the project is

4 economically viable and an attractive investment.

5        Q.  Right, but that -- the real issue --

6 that's your testimony, isn't it?

7        A.  I don't understand what you mean by the

8 real issue.

9        Q.  Look at lines 234 and 235.  Can you read

10 that sentence?

11        A.  The real issue is whether investors

12 believe that the project is viable and an

13 economically attractive investment.  National Grid

14 believes that it is.

15        Q.  You don't identify any such investors,

16 do you?

17        A.  No, I do not.

18        Q.  And you, you speculate that investors

19 are likely to be credit worthy, right?

20        A.  Investors are likely to be credit

21 worthy?

22        Q.  Yes.

23        A.  I don't recall speculating that point.

24        Q.  Can you turn to line 189?
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1        A.  I have turned to that line.

2        Q.  Yeah.  And so there it says further,

3 many of the types of the customers that will be

4 attracted to the project will likely be experienced

5 with and accustomed to complying with the credit

6 worthiness standards of the FERC tariffs, and it

7 goes on and on.

8        When you say "the customers", you are

9 talking about the people that are going to invest

10 in the line, right?

11        A.  No, in that case I meant customers who

12 are going to be buying transmission services from

13 the line.

14        Q.  And isn't it their funds that are going

15 to finance the line?

16        A.  Not necessarily.  Their funds are going

17 to be used as a data point, and the financing will

18 be from other parties.

19        Q.  It is your opinion that Rock Island can

20 establish its ability to finance the construction

21 after it gets the certificate in this case, right?

22        A.  That is correct.

23        Q.  In fact, your testimony says once the

24 initial development milestones are reached and
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1 customer agreements are entered into, project

2 specific financing can be arranged?

3        A.  That is correct.

4        Q.  The Certificate of Public Convenience

5 and Necessity that Rock Island seeks in this case

6 is one of those developmental milestones, isn't it?

7        A.  That is correct.

8        Q.  In fact, Rock Island doesn't expect to

9 execute transmission service agreements with anchor

10 tenants for more than a year after the ICC issues

11 its decision in this case?

12        A.  I believe those dates are approximately

13 correct.

14        Q.  And Rock Island plans to secure

15 financing for the construction two years from now?

16        A.  I'm not exactly sure the exact date of

17 securing all financing.

18           MR. BERNET:  May I approach, your Honor?

19           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

20           MR. BERNET:  I'm going to mark this as

21 ComEd Cross, ComEd Cross Exhibit 3.  For the record

22 this is a data request response from, that Rock

23 Island provided to ComEd question number 7.19, and

24 it is a one-page response with an attachment,
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1 one-page attachment.  I'm sorry.  I think I said it

2 was question 1.9.  Actually question 7.19.

3                  (ComEd Cross Exhibit No. 3 marked

4                  for identification.)

5        Q.  Mr. Wynter, do you recognize that

6 document?

7        A.  Yes, I do.

8        Q.  And you, you prepared that document,

9 didn't you?  You prepared the response?

10        A.  I am just looking if this is one of my

11 information requests.

12        Q.  At the bottom it says.

13        A.  Yes.

14        Q.  Direct your attention to the attachment

15 to that document which is a list of milestones,

16 right?

17        A.  Yes, they are.

18        Q.  And those are the milestones for the

19 Rock Island project, right?

20        A.  That is correct.

21        Q.  And take a look at line 26.  It says

22 Rock Island finalizes transmission -- I'm sorry.

23 That's not the right line.

24        Yeah, it is line 23.  Rock Island executes
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1 transmission service agreements with anchor

2 tenants.

3        No, I'm sorry, it is line 27.  Rock Island

4 closes construction financing for the project and

5 submits documentation to the ICC staff per

6 conditions.  Did I read that right?

7        A.  That is correct.

8        Q.  And that's going to occur in the fourth

9 quarter of 2015?

10        A.  That is correct.

11           MR. BERNET:  Thank you, Mr. Wynter.  I

12 have nothing else.

13        Your Honor, at this time I would like to

14 move for, I would like to move for the admission of

15 ComEd Cross Exhibits 2 and 3.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Are there any responses to

17 that motion?

18           MR. MACBRIDE:  We have no objection.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Let the record show

20 that ComEd Cross Exhibits 2 and 3 are admitted into

21 the evidentiary record.  As indicated previously,

22 ComEd Cross Exhibit 2 is marked confidential.  That

23 will need to be filed on e-Docket in both

24 confidential and public versions.  I guess you can
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1 work out the specifics of the public version with

2 Mr. MacBride.  But in any event, we will not mark

3 those exhibits by the court reporter.  Rather they

4 will be filed on e-Docket.

5                  (ComEd Cross Exhibits 2 and 3

6                  admitted.)

7           MR. BERNET:  So we will file them on

8 e-Docket?

9           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

10           MR. BERNET:  Great.  Thank you.

11           JUDGE JONES:  And leave will be given 14

12 days to make those filings.

13           MR. BERNET:  Okay.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Any questions about any of

15 that?

16        All right.  Thank you, Mr. Bernet.  I

17 believe there is, I assume there is still cross

18 from other, other parties.  Mr. Shay?

19           MR. SHAY:  Yes.  Thank you, your Honor.

20                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

21 QUESTIONS BY MR. SHAY:

22        Q.  Mr. Wynter, good morning.  My name is

23 Bill Shay, and I am attorney for the Illinois

24 Landowners Alliance.  They're one of the
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1 intervenors in this proceeding.

2        A.  Good morning.

3           MR. SHAY:  Your Honor, may I approach the

4 witness?  I have a document I would like to ask him

5 some questions about.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

7           MR. SHAY:  The record should reflect that

8 I handed the witness a copy of what was marked

9 yesterday and admitted as ILA Cross, Group Cross

10 Exhibit 1.  I don't have any questions at the

11 moment, but I may come back to that.

12        Q.  Mr. Wynter, you had a series of

13 questions from Mr. Bernet about all of the projects

14 in the Clean Line portfolio.

15        Do you recall those questions and answers?

16        A.  Yes, I do.

17        Q.  I think you mentioned in response to a

18 question from Mr. Bernet about the Centennial West

19 project, and I think you may have misspoke.  You

20 have indicated that that was, the cost of that was

21 in the hundreds of millions of dollars.  Do you

22 recall that?

23        A.  That's correct.

24        Q.  Yeah.  Is that project actually more
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1 like $2.5 billion, and the hundreds of millions of

2 dollars you are referring to was the Western Spirit

3 project?

4        A.  That is correct.

5        Q.  Okay.  When did National Grid, through

6 its investment vehicle subsidiary, commit to invest

7 in Clean Line?

8        A.  November of 2012.

9        Q.  And at that time which projects of Clean

10 Line were in the portfolio under development?

11        A.  I know that the Rock Island, Plains and

12 Eastern and Grain Belt projects were in there.  I

13 am unsure if Centennial West and Western Spirit

14 were in there at that point in time.

15        Q.  You are not sure if Centennial West was

16 under development at that time?

17        A.  That is correct.

18        Q.  Would you accept, subject to check, that

19 it was?

20        A.  Yes, I will.

21        Q.  Okay.  And would you accept, subject to

22 check, that Western Spirit project was not yet in

23 the portfolio of Clean Line?

24        A.  Yes, I will.
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1        Q.  So going back to those four projects, is

2 it correct that the total expected cost at that

3 point in time was approximately $8.5 billion?

4        A.  That is correct.

5        Q.  And in November of 2012 National Grid

6 committed to pay $40 million for equity ownership

7 stake in Clean Line?

8        A.  That is correct.  That was our initial

9 investment.

10        Q.  And what percentage ownership would

11 National Grid receive for that?

12        A.  It will receive 40.5% ownership in Clean

13 Line.

14        Q.  Okay.  Just doing the math, would 40% of

15 $40 million be equivalent, just for math purposes,

16 to a total equity value 100% of approximately $100

17 million?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  Okay.  So we have got four projects in

20 the hopper with a construction cost of $8.5 billion

21 and a company in November of 2012 that you could

22 characterize as having a total equity value of just

23 $100 million?

24        A.  The $40 million investment was a direct
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1 investment in Clean Line Energy Partners that also

2 gave National Grid certain options going forward.

3 So I'm not sure if it is equal.

4        Q.  Okay.  Right.  Okay.  But at the time

5 that the $8.5 billion of projects was in the

6 portfolio of Clean Line, at that point in time is

7 when National Grid made its $40 million commitment

8 for 40.5% ownership?

9        A.  That is correct.

10        Q.  Okay.  Would you say that the expected,

11 the expected value of those four projects, however

12 you might have valued them on a discounted cash

13 flow, net present value or other, other method,

14 that the expected value of those four projects for

15 which the cost would be $8.5 billion, the expected

16 value would be substantially in excess of that

17 number?

18        A.  Likely they would be.

19        Q.  Substantially in excess?

20        A.  I'm not sure.  I couldn't say.

21        Q.  Okay.  Again, just doing the math, if we

22 have got $8.5 billion in cost of projects, these

23 four projects, Rock Island representing

24 approximately $2 billion at the time, would you
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1 accept that that's roughly 23 or 24% of the total

2 of the 8.5 billion?

3        A.  Yes.

4        Q.  Okay.  So of the $40 million that

5 National Grid committed to invest, would it be fair

6 to say that about 23, 24% of that is represented by

7 the Rock Island project?

8        A.  I couldn't say.  I'm not sure if those

9 specific dollars went to that specific project.  We

10 invested in Clean Line Energy Partners.

11        Q.  Okay.  I'm not asking if those dollars

12 went to that project in that fashion.

13        Just doing the math, is that a fair

14 characterization of what the, what the total of the

15 $40 million allocable to Clean Line would

16 represent; that it would be about 23, 24% of the

17 total?  If that's not clear, I can restate it.

18        A.  If you could please restate it.

19        Q.  Okay.  That's all right.  Okay.  You

20 stated that you accepted that Rock Island's

21 construction costs represents about 23 to 24% of

22 the total construction costs of the four projects

23 that were in the portfolio at the time of National

24 Grid's investment?
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1        A.  That's correct.

2        Q.  Okay.  So of the $40 million that

3 National Grid committed to invest in Clean Line

4 overall, that would equate, also equate to 23 to

5 24% of that -- I will withdraw that.

6        Of the total of $40 million, if you multiply

7 the proportion of Rock Island to the total

8 construction costs, ie, 23, 24%, then that, that

9 percentage applied to 40 million would represent

10 the portion of your commitment that could be said

11 to be allocable to Rock Island?

12           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, I object to this

13 question.  Number one, I don't see the relevance or

14 materiality of this math exercise, and number two,

15 the witness has testified here repeatedly on how

16 the money invested in Clean Line is allocated to

17 the, to the individual projects.  It is not a math

18 exercise as he testified.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

20           MR. SHAY:  Well, your Honor, I think it

21 is relevant and probative.  We have had quite a bit

22 of testimony and prepared testimony and live

23 testimony today about financing, and I think

24 valuation of the company at the time that National
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1 Grid made its investment, the valuation of Clean

2 Line and Rock Island in particular are relevant.

3           JUDGE JONES:  Are you basically asking

4 the witness to agree that the calculation you did

5 is correct?  Is that all you are asking him in that

6 question?

7        It is kind of a long question.  I realize a

8 question like that is somewhat hard to frame, you

9 know, in the asking of it, but is that essentially

10 just asking him if, if your math is correct there?

11           MR. SHAY:  Yes, your Honor.  I'm not

12 asking him if that is -- represents the actual

13 value or the actual dollars allocated but if just

14 the math is correct.

15           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  I will allow

16 the question if the witness understands the

17 question and has an answer.

18        Do you need it read back?

19        A.  Just read back the question one last

20 time.

21                  (The reporter read the question.)

22        Q.  Do you need me to clarify any further,

23 Mr. Wynter, or do you understand?

24        A.  I understand, and I cannot say if that
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1 portion is allocable to Rock Island because that is

2 not how we allocate capital.

3        Q.  Further clarification, then, without

4 restating the whole question.  If you were assuming

5 that the allocation would be rateable, prorated

6 ratably based on total dollars expected for the

7 construction of the projects, then would that be a

8 fair -- my question be a fair statement?

9           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question.

10 Sorry, are you finished?

11           MR. SHAY:  Yes.

12           MR. MACBRIDE:  My objection is that the

13 assumption is directly contrary to what the witness

14 has testified.  So there is, there is no relevance

15 to this question.

16           JUDGE JONES:  What it really comes down

17 to is we are spending a lot of time, eating up a

18 lot of minutes on this question and whether

19 Mr. Shay is just asking the witness to verify the

20 math and not the assumptions.

21        So, I mean, how much more time do we really

22 want to spend with this particular question?

23        Is that what you are asking the witness to

24 do, to verify the math and not the assumptions, or
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1 are you asking him something else?

2           MR. SHAY:  No, just verify the math.  I

3 think it is relevant and if Mr. --

4           JUDGE JONES:  I'm just asking you which

5 of those things.

6           MR. SHAY:  Just the math, yes, your

7 Honor.  I have no more along that line after that

8 one.

9           JUDGE JONES:  All right.

10           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge --

11           JUDGE JONES:  Sorry, the argument is

12 over.

13           MR. MACBRIDE:  I'm not arguing.

14           JUDGE JONES:  But are you going to agree

15 to something here, or do you want to put some more

16 argument in?

17           MR. MACBRIDE:  No,  I was going to say if

18 it is your ruling that the witness is to be

19 directed to ratify a math calculation, seems to me

20 Mr. Shay could present the proposed math

21 calculation much more simply for the witness to

22 benefit here.

23           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  No further

24 argument will be taken on this.
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1        Mr. Wynter, ignoring the assumptions are you

2 able to verify the math in the question?

3        A.  If Mr. Shay just restates the math one

4 last time.

5           JUDGE JONES:  We are going to move on.

6 We will -- if you feel like you need to get back to

7 this question at the end of your cross-examination,

8 we will take that up then.  The question has been

9 read I don't know how many times and still

10 obviously is not clear to the witness, and it is

11 peppered with many arguments in the meantime.  So

12 if you still feel like you need to get that

13 question in there, we will, we will get back to

14 that.  Let's move on.

15        Q.  Okay.  One last question on that point.

16 I will make it very simple.

17        Mr. Wynter, would you accept, subject to

18 check, that 23 to 24% of Rock Island's portion of

19 that portfolio, sorry, 23, 24% of $40 million is

20 just under $10 million?

21        A.  Yes, I will take that subject to check.

22        Q.  Thank you.  Okay.  Mr. Wynter, are you

23 familiar with the phrase cash burn?

24        A.  Yes.
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1        Q.  What is that?

2        A.  The amount of cash that you are

3 spending.

4        Q.  Okay.  On a sort of net basis?

5        A.  Yes.

6        Q.  So there is a concept of monthly cash

7 burn?

8        A.  Yes.

9        Q.  Okay.  Would you say that Clean Line is

10 in the mode of monthly cash burn at the present

11 time?

12        A.  Are they using cash every month?  That

13 is correct.

14        Q.  Yes.  When do you expect Clean Line to

15 have its first dollar of revenue?

16        A.  Once they sign a transmission service

17 agreement and once the project is up and running.

18        Q.  Okay.  But as a member of the board and

19 in that role responsible for, among other things,

20 budgets and forecasts and overseeing those for

21 Clean Line, do you recall from any of those

22 forecasts the date when Clean Line first expects to

23 have its first dollar of revenue from any of its

24 projects?
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1        A.  I would not expect to see dollars of

2 revenues from transmission services agreements

3 until the project is in operation.  So we realize

4 this is a long-term investment, and these

5 large-scale energy infrastructure projects are

6 always high profile.

7        Q.  Would that, could that occur in 2016?

8        A.  Yes, it could.

9        Q.  That project could be completed and

10 generating revenue in 2016?

11        A.  Let me just recheck the schedule there.

12 I know we signed for financing, but I believe we

13 won't be in operation until 2018 when the project

14 is up and running.  Let me just check the final

15 data.

16        Q.  All right.

17        A.  Yes, we do not expect it to be until

18 approximately 2018 when the project is in

19 operation.

20        Q.  Okay.  I would like to refer you now to

21 what I handed you earlier.  It is four pages of

22 documents.

23           MR. SHAY:  For the record, these are what

24 was marked yesterday as ILA Cross Exhibit 1, Group
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1 Cross Exhibit 1, okay, and just to remind everyone,

2 these are marked as confidential so we won't be

3 discussing any numbers.

4        Q.  But do you see the attachment 1 which is

5 the two-page document that is just in black and

6 white?

7        A.  Yes, I do.

8        Q.  Okay.  And do you see the column called

9 Forecast 2015?

10        A.  Yes, I do.

11        Q.  And is that the last year forecast on

12 this document?

13        A.  Yes, it is.

14        Q.  Okay.  Would it be fair to say that

15 there will also be similar expenditures in the year

16 2016 that aren't shown on here?

17        A.  There will be expenditures in 2016.  I

18 can't say if they are going to be similar.

19        Q.  Okay.  But similar in nature?

20        A.  Yes.

21        Q.  How about 2017?

22        A.  Yes.

23        Q.  And will that continue until there is

24 revenue from any of the projects?
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1        A.  That will continue until there is

2 revenue from projects, but even thereafter you will

3 always have investments in maintenance, et cetera

4 on an ongoing basis.

5        Q.  Okay.  Correct.  Okay.  You said earlier

6 when you think that Clean Line might obtain its

7 first dollar of revenue.  Do you have any

8 projections?

9        Does Clean Line have any projections to your

10 knowledge that show when it might become cash

11 positive, what month that might occur?

12        A.  Not at this point in time, no.

13        Q.  Okay.  Cash positive meaning where cash

14 coming in from revenues otherwise is in excess of

15 its costs and expenditures?

16        A.  Not at this time, no.

17        Q.  Okay.  So total -- looking again at this

18 document, attachment 1, is it fair to say that

19 there will be additional cash outflows from Clean

20 Line Energy Partners beyond 2015 that will need to

21 be financed other than from customer revenues?

22        A.  Yes, that is correct.

23        Q.  Okay.  Could those be significant?

24        A.  You will have to define significant.
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1        Q.  In the tens of millions of dollars?

2        A.  Yes.

3        Q.  Okay.  Do you agree, Mr. Wynter, that

4 Rock Island is at the initial stage of its

5 development?

6        A.  Yes.

7        Q.  Do you also agree that Rock Island is

8 still in the process of advancing its initial

9 development activities?

10        A.  Yes.

11        Q.  And is Rock Island still in the process

12 of reaching initial development milestones?

13        A.  Reaching its development milestones?

14        Q.  Initial development milestones.

15        I will refer you to line 209 of your

16 testimony to refresh yourself.

17           MR. MACBRIDE:  Could the question be

18 restated or reread, please?

19           MR. SHAY:  I'm sorry, I didn't hear you.

20           MR. MACBRIDE:  Could the question be

21 restated or reread, please?

22           MR. SHAY:  Could it be reread, please?

23                  (The reporter read the question.)

24           MR. MACBRIDE:  I think the actual
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1 question was before that.

2                  (The reporter read the question.)

3        A.  Yes.

4           MR. SHAY:  Okay.  Thank you.  No further

5 questions.

6           JUDGE JONES:  All right.

7           MR. SHAY:  Thank you for your patience,

8 Mr. Wynter.

9           JUDGE JONES:  All right, Mr. Shay.

10 Mr. Davis, do you still have questions?

11           MR. DAVIS:  I do, your Honor.

12                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY MR. DAVIS:

14        Q.  Good morning.  I'm Chuck Davis.  I am

15 with the Illinois Farm Bureau.

16        A.  Good morning.

17        Q.  Good morning.  There is -- you testified

18 earlier to the fact that National Grid associated

19 with Clean Line Energy Partners officially in

20 November of last year; is that correct?

21        A.  I don't know if I said associated.

22        Q.  Well, purchased -- I guess you invested

23 money in Clean Line Energy Partners?

24        A.  The agreement was reached November of
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1 2012, that's correct.

2        Q.  And the amount of money that you

3 committed to invest gives you a 40.5% interest in

4 the company; is that correct?

5        A.  That is correct.

6        Q.  There's been testimony about the right

7 of National Grid to purchase transmission lines

8 owned by Clean Line.  Are you aware of this

9 agreement?

10        A.  I am aware that that is part of the

11 agreement.

12        Q.  Okay.  Was your ability, was your

13 company's ability to invest in Clean Line Energy

14 Partners contingent upon a commitment to purchasing

15 lines in the future?

16        A.  The agreement was constructed so that we

17 have the ability to make further investments in

18 Clean Line or in specific projects in the future.

19 That's part of the whole agreement.

20        Q.  I guess let's differentiate between

21 investments in the future and actually purchasing

22 lines.

23        So like, for example, the Rock Island Clean

24 Line, you have, National Grid has the right to
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1 purchase this line; is that correct?

2        A.  We have the rights in the agreement to

3 purchase any of the lines in the Clean Line

4 portfolio.

5        Q.  Was that, was that right to purchase

6 lines a contingency before being allowed to

7 purchase stock in the company or not?

8        A.  I'm not aware.  I wasn't part of the

9 original negotiations.

10        Q.  And if you can testify as to this, what

11 are the circumstances in which National Grid can

12 exercise its right to purchase the Rock Island

13 Clean Line?

14        A.  There are a number of points or

15 contingencies around that.  I am not exactly sure

16 of all of them.

17        Q.  Okay.  To the best of your recollection

18 what are some of those milestones or provisions?

19        A.  Milestones or provisions to what?

20        Q.  You said there are several factors that

21 would allow, that would allow National Grid to

22 purchase the Rock Island Clean Line.

23        To the best of your knowledge what are some

24 of those?
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1        A.  One of them is continued investments in

2 the future, continued cash calls and continued

3 investments.

4        Q.  Continued cash investments by who?

5        A.  National Grid.

6        Q.  So in order -- are you testifying in

7 order to maintain your right to purchase Rock

8 Island Clean Line, you have to commit -- National

9 Grid has to continue investing in Clean Line Energy

10 Partners; is that --

11        A.  That is correct.

12        Q.  Could this right to purchase Rock Island

13 Clean Line be exercised at any time?

14        A.  No, there is specific timing around it,

15 I just don't recall what the timing is.

16        Q.  As I understand it, National Grid right

17 now has two board members on Clean Line Energy

18 Partners, one including you; is that correct?

19        A.  That is correct.

20        Q.  And am I correct that there is a

21 relationship where National Grid consults or

22 contributes at least its advice to these projects

23 going forward; is that correct?

24        A.  That is correct.



377

1        Q.  Is there any agreement in place where

2 National Grid would have the ability to take over

3 the day-to-day management of Clean line Energy

4 Partners or any of its subsidiaries at any point in

5 the future?

6        A.  Take over the day-to-day operations?

7        Q.  Yes.

8        A.  Yes, to manage the company short of a

9 purchase?

10        A.  Not to my understanding.

11        Q.  I believe Mr. Skelly testified that the

12 right to purchase the line, Rock Island Clean Line

13 by National Grid was only preconstruction.  Is that

14 also your understanding?

15        A.  I'm not sure.

16           MR. DAVIS: I have no further questions.

17 Thank you.

18           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Davis.  Is

19 there any redirect?

20           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes.  Could we take a

21 five-minute recess?

22           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  We hereby break

23 for five minutes.

24                 (A break was taken.)
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

2 Mr. MacBride, any redirect?

3           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes, sir, if I may

4 proceed?

5           JUDGE JONES:  Yes.

6           MR. MACBRIDE:  Thank you.

7                 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

8 QUESTIONS BY MR. MACBRIDE:

9        Q.  Mr. Wynter, I just want to ask you first

10 a couple of questions here to make sure that the

11 terminology is clear on the record.

12        You were asked, I think, a number of

13 questions as to whether the construction costs of

14 the Rock Island project is $1.8 billion.

15        Just so that is clear, is $1.8 billion a

16 construction cost or the total project cost?

17        A.  It is the total project cost.

18        Q.  Okay.  And similarly I think you were

19 asked some questions about a point in time earlier

20 in history here where the Clean Line had four

21 projects with a total cost of $8.5 billion

22 estimated at that time.  Do you recall those

23 questions?

24        A.  Yes, I do.
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1        Q.  All right.  Is it your understanding

2 that, is it your understanding that 8.5 billion is

3 the total project cost?

4        A.  Total project cost, that's correct.

5        Q.  You were asked a number of questions

6 about rights that National Grid has to purchase

7 something from Clean Line, and that's the point of

8 my question here.

9        What specifically is it that National Grid

10 would have the right to purchase?

11        A.  National Grid has the right to purchase

12 the subsidiary companies under Clean Line or

13 National Grid has the right to purchase or acquire

14 Clean Line.

15        Q.  All right.  So is it correct to say that

16 National Grid would have to purchase the entire

17 company, for example, Rock Island Clean Line as

18 opposed to purchasing its physical assets?

19        A.  That is correct, the subsidiary company.

20        Q.  You were asked some questions about what

21 the currently projected construction completion

22 date and start of operation is for the Rock Island

23 Clean Line.  Do you recall those?

24        A.  Yes, I do.
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1        Q.  During the break did you have an

2 opportunity to review the information that's been

3 provided on that topic?

4        A.  Yes, I did.

5        Q.  And would you like to clarify or revise

6 your information on the expected construction date?

7        A.  Yes.

8        Q.  Excuse me, construction completion date?

9        A.  Yes, the correct construction completion

10 date is the end of 2017.

11        Q.  So again, referring to some of the

12 earlier questions, would that also be the date in

13 which it would be expected that revenue would begin

14 to be received by Rock Island?

15        A.  Yes, that is correct.

16        Q.  Now, if you would look at your prepared

17 testimony, please, on page 7?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  Lines 156 to 159, excuse me, 156 to 158.

20 You were asked some questions about that sentence.

21 Do you see that sentence?

22        A.  Yes, I do.

23        Q.  And do you recall those questions?

24        A.  Yes, I do.
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1        Q.  All right.  In that sentence on line 156

2 to 158, were you intending to convey that Rock

3 Island is capable of doing anything less than what

4 you understand to be the statutory requirement?

5        A.  No, I was not.

6           MR. MACBRIDE:  Thank you.  No further

7 questions.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Is there any

9 recross?

10           MR. BERNET:  No recross from ComEd.

11           MR. SHAY:  None from ILA.

12           MR. DAVIS:  No, your Honor.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  You are

14 finished.

15           THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Mr. MacBride, does Rock

17 Island have another witness to call at this time?

18           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes, we do.  Dragging his

19 box to the witness stand as we speak.  We call

20 Mr. Koch as our next witness.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please raise your

22 right hand and be sworn.

23

24
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1                     MATTHEW KOCH,

2 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

3 as follows:

4           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please be

5 seated.

6                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

7 QUESTIONS BY MR. MACBRIDE:

8        Q.  Sir, could you please state your name

9 and business address for the record?

10        A.  Matthew Koch, last name is K-O-C-H, 30

11 North LaSalle, Suite 3220, Chicago, Illinois 60602.

12        Q.  Mr. Koch, who is your employer and what

13 is your present position?

14        A.  HDR Engineering, project manager.

15        Q.  Have you prepared certain testimony and

16 exhibits that you wish to offer in this proceeding?

17        A.  I have.

18        Q.  And do you understand that these

19 testimony and exhibits have previously been filed

20 on the Commission's e-Docket system?

21        A.  I do.

22        Q.  Do you have before you a copy of a

23 document that is titled Direct Testimony of Matthew

24 Koch on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line, LLC, and
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1 that it is identified as Rock Island Exhibit 8.0?

2        A.  I do.

3        Q.  Does Rock Island Exhibit 8.0 consist of

4 a cover page followed by a table of contents and

5 nine pages of written questions and answers?

6        A.  Yes.

7        Q.  Is 8.0 the prepared direct testimony you

8 wish to offer?

9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

11 to make to that exhibit?

12        A.  No.

13        Q.  If I were to ask you the questions at

14 this hearing today that are shown on Rock Island

15 Exhibit 8.0, would your answers be the same?

16        A.  Yes.

17        Q.  Do you also have before you documents

18 that have been marked for identification as Rock

19 Island Exhibit 8.1 and 8.2?

20        A.  I do.

21        Q.  Are these exhibits to your direct

22 testimony?

23        A.  They are.

24        Q.  Were these exhibits prepared under your
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1 supervision and direction?

2        A.  Yes, they were.

3        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

4 to make to either of those two exhibits?

5        A.  No, I do not.

6        Q.  Is the contents of those exhibits true

7 and accurate to the best of your knowledge and

8 belief?

9        A.  They are.

10        Q.  And are those two exhibits further

11 identified and described in your prepared direct

12 testimony?

13        A.  They are.

14        Q.  Okay.  Next do you have in front of you

15 a document that is titled Rebuttal Testimony of

16 Matthew Koch on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line

17 LLC, and, it is marked as Rock Island Exhibit 8.3?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  Does that exhibit consist of a cover

20 page and a table of contents followed by 38 pages

21 of written questions and answers?

22        A.  It does.

23        Q.  Is Rock Island Exhibit 8.3 the rebuttal

24 testimony you wish to offer in this proceeding?
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1        A.  It is.

2        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

3 to make to that exhibit?

4        A.  I have one.

5        Q.  Would you state that, please?

6        A.  Page 5, line 93.  Kiewit Power

7 Constructors should be --

8           JUDGE JONES:  Spell that for the

9 reporter, please.  Thank you.

10        A.  K-I-E-W-I-T should be substituted with

11 Power Engineers Company.

12           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, where the witness

13 has made an on-the-record or on-the-stand

14 correction such as Mr. Koch just did, would you

15 like us to refile the exhibit or is stating the

16 correction for the record sufficient?

17           JUDGE JONES:  I think refiling the

18 exhibit would be the better course because what we

19 are doing is essentially admitting exhibits as they

20 appear on e-Docket.  So to remain consistent with

21 that refiling would be the, would be the better

22 path.  That is the only change that will --

23        A.  That is correct.

24           JUDGE JONES:  -- appear is that --
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1           MR. MACBRIDE:  It is.

2        A.  That is the only change in 8.3.

3           MR. MACBRIDE:  All right.  So Rock Island

4 will refile Exhibit 8.3 as 8.3 Revised with the

5 correction made to it.

6           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Does anyone

7 have any objection to that happening?

8           MR. PHILLIPS:  No objection, your Honor.

9           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So that is,

10 that is how that will be done, and that will be

11 filed within two weeks.

12        Q.  With the correction that you have made,

13 Mr. Koch, if I were to ask you at this hearing the

14 questions shown on Rock Island Exhibit 8.3, would

15 you give the same answers?

16        A.  Yes.

17        Q.  Do you also have before you documents

18 that have been marked for identification as Rock

19 Island Exhibits 8.4 and through 8.9?

20        A.  I do.

21        Q.  Are these the exhibits to your rebuttal

22 testimony?

23        A.  They are.

24        Q.  Were these exhibits prepared under your
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1 supervision and direction?

2        A.  They were.

3        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

4 to make to any of those exhibits?

5        A.  Just one on 8.4.

6        Q.  Would you state that, please?

7        A.  Under the very last line of Exhibit 8.4,

8 the number 22,359.5, should be 55,214.28.  No other

9 changes on Exhibit 8.4.

10        Q.  Thank you.

11           MR. MACBRIDE:  So Judge, Rock Island will

12 also refile Exhibit 8.4 as revised with the

13 corrections made.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Are there any objections to

15 that?

16        There are not.  So that will be filed within

17 14 days.

18        Q.  With that correction, Mr. Koch, is the

19 information set forth on Rock Island Exhibits 8.4

20 through 8.9 true and correct to the best of your

21 knowledge?

22        A.  They are.

23        Q.  And are these exhibits further

24 identified and described in your prepared rebuttal



388

1 testimony?

2        A.  Yes, they are.

3        Q.  Now, do you also have before you a

4 document that is titled Surrebuttal Testimony of

5 Matthew Koch on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line,

6 LLC that has been identified as Rock Island Exhibit

7 8.10?

8        A.  I do.

9        Q.  Does that, I believe, consist of a cover

10 page, a table of contents followed by four pages of

11 written questions and answers?

12        A.  It does.

13        Q.  Okay.  Is Rock Island Exhibit 8.10 the

14 surrebuttal testimony you wish to offer in this

15 case?

16        A.  It is.

17        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

18 to make to that exhibit?

19        A.  No, I do not.

20        Q.  If I were to ask you at this hearing the

21 questions shown on Rock Island Exhibit 8.10, would

22 your answers be the same?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  And finally do you also have before you
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1 documents that have been marked for identification

2 as Rock Island Exhibits 8.11 and 8.12?

3        A.  Yes, I do.

4        Q.  Are these the exhibits to your

5 surrebuttal testimony?

6        A.  They are.

7        Q.  Were Rock Island Exhibits 8.11 through

8 8.12 prepared under your supervision and direction?

9        A.  They were.

10        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

11 to make to either of those two exhibits?

12        A.  No, I do not.

13        Q.  Are those exhibits further identified

14 and described in your prepared surrebuttal

15 testimony?

16        A.  Yes.

17        Q.  And is the information set forth on

18 those exhibits true and correct to the best of your

19 knowledge and belief?

20        A.  Yes.

21           MR. MACBRIDE:  We offer the exhibits

22 identified by Mr. Koch into evidence and offer Mr.

23 Koch for cross-examination.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Any response?
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1           MR. PHILLIPS:  No, your Honor.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that

3 the exhibits, the testimony and exhibits identified

4 by Mr. Koch are admitted into the evidentiary

5 record subject to the refiling of two of those with

6 corrections.

7        So more specifically admitted are 8.0 and

8 8.1 and 8.2 as filed on e-Docket on October the

9 10th, 2012.  Also admitted are 8.5, 8.6, 8.7, 8.8

10 and 8.9 as filed on e-Docket on August 20, 2013.

11 Also admitted are 8.10 and 8.11 and 8.12 as filed

12 on e-Docket on November 12th, 2013.  8.3 and 8.4

13 are also admitted, but that is subject to being

14 refiled as corrected within two weeks from today's

15 date.  Upon being filed it will be deemed admitted

16 into the evidentiary record without condition.

17        Mr. MacBride, how do you propose to

18 specifically identify those two exhibit numbers?

19           MR. MACBRIDE:  I propose that when

20 refiled Exhibits 8.3 and 8.4 will be identified as

21 8.3 Revised and 8.4 Revised.

22           JUDGE JONES:  That is acceptable, and so

23 they will be known as 8.3 Revised, 8.4 Revised.

24
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1              (Rock Island Exhibits 8.0 through

2              8.12 admitted.)

3           JUDGE JONES:  Are there any questions or

4 clarifications regarding any of that?

5        All right.  There are not.  I believe

6 counsel for ILA has cross questions; is that

7 correct?

8           MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes.  Thank you, your

9 Honor.

10           JUDGE JONES:  Go ahead, identify yourself

11 again for our court reporter.

12           MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes.  My name is Jonathan

13 Phillips.  I'm an attorney for Illinois Landowners

14 Alliance.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

16                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY MR. PHILLIPS:

18        Q.  Good morning, Mr. Koch.

19        A.  Good morning.

20        Q.  Koch not Coke, correct?

21        A.  Koch.

22        Q.  Okay.  As I said, my name is Jonathan

23 Phillips.  I'm an attorney for the Illinois

24 Landowners Alliance.  We are an intervenor in this
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1 proceeding.

2        As you have heard before, if I ask you a

3 question that's not very clear and you need it

4 rephrased, just let me know.

5        Also, if I say the word the line or

6 something to that effect, will you understand it

7 means the Rock Island Clean Line?

8        A.  Yes.

9        Q.  Okay.  It is my hope today to ask very

10 simple questions and move along very quickly, so I

11 will just go ahead, get started.

12        You were here for the testimony of

13 Mr. Skelly yesterday, correct?

14        A.  Most of it.

15        Q.  Okay.  Did you recall that in his

16 testimony he said Rock Island had not filed for a

17 franchise in Iowa which is the rough equivalent of

18 what Rock Island is trying to obtain through these

19 proceedings?

20        A.  Yes.

21        Q.  Okay.  Isn't it correct without approval

22 from the Iowa Utility Board, Rock Island can't know

23 for certain the exact route that the line in Iowa

24 will take, if any?



393

1           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to this question.

2 I don't think Mr. Koch's testimony in any way

3 addresses the routing of the project in Iowa.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

5           MR. PHILLIPS:  I will withdraw it, your

6 Honor.

7        Q.  Okay.  Mr. Koch, you state in your

8 testimony, Exhibit 8, which I think is your direct

9 testimony, that the routing study you undertook or

10 the routing team undertook started in March 2010;

11 is that correct?

12        A.  That's correct.

13        Q.  The study reached conclusions based upon

14 the data that you had at the time you were drafting

15 the study and going through it; that is, obviously

16 it was limited by whatever information you had at

17 that time?

18        A.  Can you repeat the question?

19        Q.  Yes.  Sorry, that wasn't clear.  Not

20 doing a very good job of that.

21        The study was made based upon the data that

22 you had in your hands at the time the study was

23 made.  So later information is not in that study?

24        A.  There is no information in the study
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1 after the filing of the routing study.

2        Q.  Okay.  The routing study was filed or

3 completed in September 2012, correct?

4        If not, I can direct you to your Exhibit

5 8.2, page 4, which suggests that was the completion

6 date, but subject to check does that sound

7 approximately correct?

8        A.  Correct.

9        Q.  Are you aware that that acquisition of

10 land rights in this case will be continuing into

11 2016?

12        A.  I'm not for certain.

13        Q.  Okay.  Are you aware that the in-service

14 date of this line has been suggested to be around

15 2017, in 2017?

16        A.  Yes.

17        Q.  So is it fair to say that the

18 construction of the line may be going on well into

19 2016 and 2017?

20        A.  Can you repeat that?

21        Q.  Is it fair to say that construction of

22 the line, of the transmission line may be

23 proceeding in the years 2016 and 2017?

24        A.  I do not know on 2016.
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1        Q.  Okay.  Do you believe it will be

2 proceeding in 2017?

3        A.  Assuming an in-service date of 2017,

4 yes.

5        Q.  Okay.  The study that you had submitted,

6 I believe again Exhibit 8.2 of your testimony, Rock

7 Island Exhibit 8.2, is that missing any data or

8 inputs or sensitivities?

9        A.  Can you repeat again, sir?

10        Q.  The study that was submitted, Exhibit

11 8.2 -- I know it is voluminous -- is it missing any

12 sensitivities or data or inputs that you have later

13 become aware of?

14        A.  We were made aware of one home after the

15 filing of Exhibit 8.2.

16        Q.  Okay.  Are you aware of any other

17 developments that may be planned or taking place at

18 this time that may have been put in the study if it

19 were, say to be completed today?

20        A.  We were made aware of a couple

21 developments.  We were made aware of a potential

22 commercial development near the city of Morris.

23        Q.  Any others?

24        A.  Was made aware that there may be one
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1 airport in Bureau County, a private airport.

2        Q.  Okay.  And are you aware of any resorts

3 along the Fox River as well that may be in

4 development?

5        A.  I'm aware that a company owns a current

6 resort and may have or they own land adjacent to

7 it.

8        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Is it possible that

9 between now and when construction ends there will

10 be more developments that if the study were

11 completed at a later date would be in the study and

12 would be considered?

13        A.  I can't say for sure.

14        Q.  Okay.  Moving on from that portion, Rock

15 Island consulted with Illinois Department of

16 Natural Resources regarding routing, correct?

17        A.  That is correct.

18        Q.  As far as you know has the staff of the

19 Commission, the Commission itself or any other

20 person consulted with the Illinois Department of

21 Natural Resources?

22        A.  I do not know.

23        Q.  In your meetings with IDNR was anyone

24 present other than Rock Island or Rock Island
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1 agents such as HDR Engineering?

2        A.  And DNR staff.

3        Q.  DNR staff.  Sorry, yes.

4        When you engaged or when Rock Island engaged

5 the Illinois Department of Natural Resources did

6 IDNR express concern about the proposed crossing of

7 the Mississippi River, the current location of it?

8        A.  They did.

9        Q.  And didn't IDNR suggest that the

10 crossing be moved further south of the river due to

11 a high concentration of protected mussels?

12        A.  Initially.

13        Q.  And, in fact, hadn't -- in your routing

14 study didn't you state that you had actually

15 examined this more southerly crossing due to the

16 perceived, what you have defined as opportunities

17 of a pipeline further south?

18        A.  We did.

19        Q.  And to be fair, you decided placing the

20 power line adjacent to another power line was more,

21 a more advantageous opportunity?

22        A.  It was more advantageous in general.

23        Q.  Okay.  But IDNR was also concerned about

24 forest fragmentation directly across or directly
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1 next to the river; is that correct?

2        A.  They were.

3        Q.  And as of today the Illinois Department

4 of Natural Resources remains concerned about forest

5 fragmentation at the Mississippi River crossing; is

6 that correct?

7        A.  It is correct.  They have noted, though,

8 there is other routing criteria that have to be

9 considered in that area that Rock Island

10 considered.

11        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  You engaged in a

12 detailed study of five routes for the DC portion of

13 the line; is that correct?

14        A.  That is correct.

15        Q.  None of these routes that you engaged in

16 that detailed study were along the Rock Island

17 Railroad; is that correct?

18        A.  They were not.

19        Q.  Okay.  You mentioned -- did you study

20 the Rock Island Railroad route at all?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  What did that consist of, that study?

23        A.  Consisted of both a field review from

24 the railroad as well as a desk-top assessment of
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1 available data as well along the railroad.

2        Q.  Okay.  But you wouldn't call that a

3 quote detailed quantitative analysis?

4        A.  I would still call it that.

5        Q.  If I -- do you remember answering an

6 ILA, Illinois Landowners Alliance data request

7 3.02?  If you could, just let me know if you do

8 have it and when you find it.

9        A.  Yeah, sure.  Okay, I'm there.

10        Q.  When asked to state why no analysis was

11 undertaken to ascertain the possibility of

12 bypassing quote cities along the line, was your

13 response no detailed quantitative analysis was

14 performed for that purpose?

15        A.  For bypassing cities, that is correct.

16        Q.  Yes, bypassing cities.  Thank you.

17        When you rode along the high rail line you

18 observed various homes along the way.  Did you

19 check the exact distances from the railroad?

20        A.  I wasn't involved in that study, so I

21 couldn't say for sure.

22        Q.  Okay.  Is Rock Island or HDR aware of

23 these homes that are listed if they are even

24 occupied?
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1           MR. MACBRIDE:  Objection.  I'm not sure

2 what the reference is to these homes that are

3 listed.

4        Is some part of the testimony being referred

5 to?

6           MR. PHILLIPS:  I will withdraw that

7 question, your Honor.

8        Q.  In your analysis, in your study you list

9 residences as a sensitivity; is that correct?

10        A.  That is correct.

11        Q.  And a house that is unoccupied counts as

12 a sensitivity, and a house that is occupied counts

13 as a sensitivity?

14        A.  That is correct.

15        Q.  And a house that is sitting right next

16 to a railroad is counted as a sensitivity?

17        A.  Yes.

18        Q.  One that is nearly under a power line

19 would be counted as a sensitivity?

20        A.  Yes.

21        Q.  So essentially no matter where the home

22 is, where it is located, its condition, its

23 occupancy, it all just counts for a single unit of

24 sensitivity in your analysis?
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1        A.  Can you restate that?

2        Q.  No matter the home's condition, the

3 location of the home in relation to any other

4 infrastructure or otherwise, they all count as a

5 single sensitivity in your analysis?

6        A.  They are all considered as residences or

7 nonresidential structures which are both

8 sensitivities in our analysis.

9        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  And just wrapping up

10 here, you note that -- are you aware that different

11 Farm Service Administration offices have different

12 policies concerning impacts to conservation

13 resources or reserve program lands?

14        A.  That has been my experience.

15        Q.  Okay.  You are aware of at least one

16 person who has some conservation reserve program

17 lands along the route?

18        A.  I am aware of one.

19        Q.  Okay.  Did you contact the FSA about

20 that, the local FSA office about that person's

21 land?

22        A.  I did not.

23        Q.  Okay.  You do not have a license

24 allowing you to aerially apply herbicides,
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1 fungicides or any fertilizer on any field, correct?

2        A.  I do not.

3        Q.  Did you ever write to any landowners to

4 inquire as to locations of conservation reserve

5 program lands?

6        A.  I do not recall doing so.

7        Q.  You noted in your testimony that some

8 landowners did not wish to be contacted by

9 telephone; is that correct?

10        A.  Yes.

11        Q.  Isn't it true that you could have

12 contacted those landowners by mail, though?

13        A.  I do not know.

14        Q.  You refer to your testimony -- one

15 moment -- in 8.3, lines 182 to 184 that Mr. Jacobs

16 has notified Rock Island in writing not to

17 communicate with him; is that correct?

18        A.  One second.  That is correct.

19        Q.  So I assume that you are at least aware

20 of the writing that makes, that Mr. Jacobs has told

21 Rock Island not to contact him by?

22        A.  I'm aware Rock Island was told not to

23 communicate with him in writing.

24        Q.  Okay.  Are you aware that the letter



403

1 that was sent said you could contact Mr. Jacobs in

2 writing if you wished to do so?

3        A.  I'm not aware of that.

4           MR. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I don't believe I

5 have any further questions.  Thank you very much.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Redirect?

7           MR. MACBRIDE:  No redirect.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, sir.

9        Does Rock Island have any other witnesses to

10 call at this time?

11           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes, we call our next

12 witness, Mr. Hans Detweiler.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please raise your

14 right hand and be sworn.

15                    HANS DETWEILER,

16 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

17 as follows:

18                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

19 QUESTIONS BY MR. MACBRIDE.

20        Q.  Please state your name and business

21 address for the record.

22        A.  Hans Detweiler, 5412 North Clark,

23 Chicago, Illinois 60640.

24        Q.  Mr. Detweiler, who is your employer, and
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1 what is your present position?

2        A.  Clean Line Energy Partners.  I'm the

3 Director of Development.

4        Q.  Have you prepared certain testimony and

5 exhibits that you wish to offer in this proceeding?

6        A.  Yes, I have.

7        Q.  And is it your understanding that all of

8 your exhibits have been previously filed on the

9 Commission's e-Docket system?

10        A.  Yes, it is my understanding.

11        Q.  Do you have before you a document that's

12 titled Direct Testimony of Hans Detweiler on behalf

13 of Rock Island Clean Line LLC that is identified as

14 Rock Island Exhibit 7.0?

15        A.  Yes, I do.

16        Q.  Does that exhibit consist of a cover

17 page followed by a table of contents and 50 pages

18 of written questions and answers?

19        A.  Yes, it does.

20        Q.  Is Rock Island Exhibit 7.0 the prepared

21 direct testimony you wish to offer in this case?

22        A.  7.0, yes.

23        Q.  Yes.  Do you have any corrections or

24 changes to make to Rock Island Exhibit 7.0?
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1        A.  Yes, I have one correction.

2        Q.  What is that?

3        A.  That correction is on line 43.  I

4 mention Rock Island Exhibit 8.1.  It should have

5 referenced Rock Island Exhibit 8.2.

6        Q.  With that correction, if I were to ask

7 you the questions shown on Rock Island Exhibit 7.0

8 at this hearing today, would you give the same

9 answers?

10        A.  Subject to other updates and corrections

11 that have previously been provided, that's correct.

12           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, Rock Island will

13 refile Rock Island Exhibit 7.0 with the indicated

14 correction and identify it as Rock Island Exhibit

15 7.0 Revised.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Leave of 14 days will be

17 given for that purpose.

18        Q.  Do you also have before you documents

19 that have been marked for identification as Rock

20 Island Exhibits 7.1 through 7.15, 7.16 Revised, and

21 7.17 through 7.27?

22        A.  Yes, I do.

23        Q.  Are these the exhibits to your direct

24 testimony?
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1        A.  Yes, they are.

2        Q.  Were the exhibits just identified

3 prepared under your supervision and direction?

4        A.  Yes, they were.

5        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

6 to make to any of these exhibits?

7        A.  None other than what has already been

8 provided.

9        Q.  Is the contents of these exhibits true

10 and accurate to the best of your knowledge and

11 belief?

12        A.  Yes.

13        Q.  And are they further identified and

14 described in your prepared direct testimony?

15        A.  Yes.

16        Q.  You also have before you a document that

17 has been marked as Rock Island Exhibit 7.28 which

18 is described as the final Agricultural Mitigation

19 Impact Agreement between Rock Island and the

20 Illinois Department of Agriculture?

21        A.  Pretty sure.  Yes, I do.

22        Q.  All right.  And do you also have an

23 exhibit identified as Exhibit 7.29 which is a

24 project development agreement between Rock Island
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1 and Rock Island County?

2        A.  Yes, I do.

3        Q.  Were these two exhibits prepared under

4 your supervision and direction?

5        A.  Yes, they were.

6        Q.  These exhibits were filed and served

7 subsequent to the filing of your direct testimony

8 but prior to your rebuttal; is that correct?

9        A.  That's correct.

10        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

11 to make to either of those two exhibits?

12        A.  No, I do not.

13        Q.  Next you have before you a document

14 that's titled Rebuttal Testimony of Hans Detweiler

15 on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line, LLC that's

16 been identified as Rock Island Exhibit 7.30?

17        A.  I do.

18        Q.  Does that exhibit consist of a

19 cover page and a table of contents followed by 39

20 pages of questions and answers?

21        A.  It does.

22        Q.  Is Rock Island Exhibit 7.30 the rebuttal

23 testimony you wish to offer in this proceeding?

24        A.  Yes, it is.
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1        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

2 to make to this exhibit?

3        A.  No, I do not.

4        Q.  If I were to ask you at the hearing, ask

5 you at this hearing the questions in Rock Island

6 Exhibit 7.30, would you give the same answers?

7        A.  Subject to any clarifications already

8 made, correct.

9        Q.  You also have before you documents that

10 have been marked for identification as Rock Island

11 Exhibits 7.31 Revised, 7.32, 7.33 and 7.34?

12        A.  Correct.

13        Q.  Are these the exhibits to your rebuttal

14 testimony?

15        A.  Yes, they are.

16        Q.  Were they prepared under your

17 supervision and direction?

18        A.  Yes, they were.

19        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

20 to any of these exhibits?

21        A.  No, I do not.

22        Q.  Is the content of these exhibits true

23 and correct to the best of your knowledge and

24 belief?
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1        A.  Yes, it is.

2        Q.  And are these exhibits further

3 identified and described in your prepared rebuttal

4 testimony?

5        A.  Yes, they are.

6        Q.  Next do you have before you a document

7 that is titled Surrebuttal Testimony of Hans

8 Detweiler on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line LLC

9 that is identified as Rock Island Exhibit 7.35?

10        A.  That is correct.

11        Q.  Does this exhibit consist of a cover

12 page and table of contents followed by 27 pages of

13 questions and answers?

14        A.  Yes, it does.

15        Q.  Is Rock Island Exhibit 7.35 the

16 surrebuttal testimony you wish to offer in this

17 proceeding?

18        A.  Yes, it is.

19        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

20 to make to that exhibit?

21        A.  No, I do not.

22        Q.  And if I were to ask you the questions

23 today that are shown on Rock Island Exhibit 7.35,

24 would you give the same answers?
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1        A.  Yes, I would.

2        Q.  Finally, do you have before you

3 documents that have been marked for identification

4 as Rock Island Exhibits 7.36 and 7.37?

5        A.  Yes, I do.

6        Q.  Are these the exhibits to your

7 surrebuttal testimony?

8        A.  Yes, they are.

9        Q.  Were these exhibits prepared under your

10 supervision and direction?

11        A.  Yes, they were.

12        Q.  Do you have any corrections or changes

13 to any of these exhibits?

14        A.  No, I do not.

15        Q.  Are the contents of these exhibits true

16 and accurate to the best of your knowledge and

17 belief?

18        A.  Yes, it is.

19        Q.  And are these exhibits further

20 identified and described in your prepared

21 surrebuttal testimony?

22        A.  Yes, they are.

23           MR. MACBRIDE:  We offer the exhibits

24 identified by Mr. Detweiler into evidence and offer
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1 Mr. Detweiler for cross-examination.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Any response?

3           MR. FOSCO:  No objection, your Honor.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that

5 the testimony and exhibits sponsored by

6 Mr. Detweiler are admitted into the evidentiary

7 record at this time with one notation with respect

8 to 7.0.

9        More specifically the admitted exhibits are

10 7.1, 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, 7.5, 7.6, 7.7, 7.8, 7.9, 7.10,

11 7.11, 7.12, 7.13, 7.14, and 7.15, all filed on

12 e-Docket on October 10, 2012.

13        Also admitted are 7.16 Revised as filed on

14 e-Docket on June 18th, 2013.

15        Also admitted are 7.17, 7.18, 7.19, 7.20,

16 7.21, 7.22, 7.23, 7.24, 7.25, 7.26, 7.27 as filed

17 on e-Docket October 10th, 2012.

18        Also admitted as 7.28 as filed on e-Docket

19 on May 31, 2013 and 7.29 as filed on e-Docket June

20 18th, 2013.

21        On the rebuttal front also admitted is 7.30

22 filed August 20th, 2013, 7.31 Revised as filed

23 November 27, 2013, 7.32, 7.33, and 7.34 as filed on

24 August 20, 2013.
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1        The surrebuttal admitted are Exhibits 7.35,

2 7.36 and 7.37 all as filed on e-Docket on November

3 12, 2013.

4        As noted, 7.0 is going to be filed

5 reflecting that one correction that was identified,

6 and it is deemed admitted today subject to being

7 refiled as corrected, and it will be deemed

8 admitted without condition upon its being filed and

9 will be known as 7.0 Revised.

10                  (Rock Island Exhibits 7.0, 7.1

11                  through 7.15, 7.16 Revised, 7.17

12                  through 7.30, 7.31 Revised, 7.32

13                  through 7.37 admitted.)

14           MR. MACBRIDE:  Correct.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Any correction or

16 clarifications with regard to any of that, any of

17 those items?

18        Okay.  Off the record briefly.

19                  (Discussion off the record.)

20           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  An

21 off-the-record discussion for the purposes

22 indicated.  I believe counsel for some of the

23 intervenor parties are ready to conduct

24 cross-examination.
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1           MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, your Honor.

2                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

3 QUESTIONS BY MR. PHILLIPS:

4        Q.  Good, I guess we are still in the

5 morning, Mr. Detweiler.  You were here when I spoke

6 to Mr. Koch, so you know who I am.  You know about

7 the line, and if I ask a question that's not clear,

8 let me know, and hopefully like I got through with

9 him, we will move quickly and can all get out of

10 here sooner than later.

11        So to start off you have a Bachelor's in

12 Arts in political science from Grinnell; is that

13 correct?

14        A.  That is correct.

15        Q.  Since then prior to working for Clean

16 Line would it be fair to characterize your

17 employment as primarily being in public policy and

18 policy advisor type roles or by all means you can

19 tell me how you describe --

20        A.  That -- I think that's a key part of it.

21 I also think there is a lot of outreach and

22 communications kind of work that I have done, and

23 there is -- with Clean Line there's been work on

24 infrastructure development.
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1        Q.  Okay.  Do you have a pilot's license?

2        A.  I do not.

3        Q.  And not having a pilot's license, you

4 probably don't have a license to apply agricultural

5 materials by aerial application?

6        A.  I do not.

7        Q.  Okay.  In your testimony you mention

8 that there was a routing team.  It wasn't just Mr.

9 Koch, there was a whole team; is that correct?

10        A.  That's correct.

11        Q.  And you were one of 19 people on that

12 routing team?

13        A.  The routing team is listed at the end

14 of --

15        Q.  Subject to check?

16        A.  Subject to check, 19 sounds about right.

17        Q.  Subject to check in Exhibit 8.2 Appendix

18 A you list 19 different people.

19        Seven of those members worked for HDR

20 Engineering; is that correct?

21        A.  Do you recall what page this routing

22 study is listed?  I thought it was at the end, but

23 maybe it is front with some of the maps.

24        Q.  It is Appendix A.  If you hold it up, it
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1 is about halfway through.  I'd be happy to give you

2 my page if you would like.

3        A.  Yeah, if you have got a line or

4 something.

5        Q.  There is no page number, sir, there is

6 no line number, it just says Appendix A.

7        A.  Oh, yes.

8        Q.  Page 114 of something?

9        A.  I have it.  So the question is how many

10 are from HDR Engineering?

11        Q.  Yes.  Is that seven?

12        A.  That is seven, correct.

13        Q.  Okay.  HDR had a project manager, an

14 Illinois routing lead, an Iowa routing lead, two

15 environmental scientists, a GIS manager, a public

16 involvement manager, and a public involvement

17 specialist, correct?

18        A.  That's correct.

19        Q.  Your title on Appendix A as part of the

20 routing team is Director of Development; is that

21 correct?

22        A.  That's correct.

23        Q.  What specific tasks did you personally

24 undertake as part of the routing team?
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1        A.  I generally supervised the routing

2 team's operations notably in close coordination

3 with Dr. Wayne Galli who is a witness in this case

4 as well as regards the more engineering, technical

5 specifications of the project.

6        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  And this routing,

7 just to be clear, is sponsored by Mr. Koch not you;

8 is that correct?

9        A.  That is correct.

10        Q.  I would like to refer you to your direct

11 testimony and nowhere in particular at this very

12 moment.

13        But would it be fair to say that a

14 significant portion of your testimony serves as a

15 summary of other witnesses' testimony in this

16 proceeding?

17        A.  Can you define what you mean by

18 significant portion?

19        Q.  Well, if I looked at pages 3 through 16

20 of Exhibit 7.0, your direct testimony, I would

21 repeatedly find the words as further explained in

22 someone else's testimony and so on, so forth.

23        I can give you a couple of lines.  For

24 instance, on Rock Island Exhibit 7.0, page 2, lines
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1 41 through 44, you state each of the aforementioned

2 topics covered in detail, an Illinois routing

3 study, Rock Island Clean Line parenthesis quote

4 routing study and both of those which is Rock

5 Island Exhibit 7. or 8.2 sponsored by Rock Island

6 witness Matthew Koch, and that 8.2 is as corrected

7 today?

8        A.  Matthew Koch, that's correct.

9        Q.  Yeah.  And then later on, on page 4,

10 line 78, you mention as Rock Island witness Wayne

11 Galli describes, the Rock Island project will, and

12 then you go on?

13        A.  That's correct.

14        Q.  So I guess what I'm getting at is a lot

15 of your testimony, your direct testimony, it

16 appears to be a summarization of other people's

17 testimony, not all of it but a good chunk of it; is

18 that correct?

19           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question.

20 His testimony speaks for itself.  There is no

21 relevance to this request for a characterization of

22 the testimony.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

24           MR. PHILLIPS:  I will just withdraw the
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1 question, your Honor.

2        Q.  Okay.  You state in your testimony that

3 Rock Island is not seeking eminent domain authority

4 at this time; is that correct?

5        A.  That is correct.

6        Q.  However, you suggest that Rock Island

7 will seek eminent domain authority if reasonable

8 efforts at buying an easement fail; is that

9 correct?

10        A.  Can you show me a line reference?

11        Q.  Yes, I can.  Well, let's just -- I will

12 withdraw that question.

13        Do you recall responding to the Illinois

14 Landowners Alliance data request 4.01?

15           MR. PHILLIPS:  Permission to approach the

16 witness, your Honor?

17           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

18           MR. PHILLIPS:  Here is one for you.

19        A.  Thank you.

20           MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, if you would

21 like a copy.

22        Q.  Mr. Detweiler, did you prepare this data

23 request, or was it prepared under your direction or

24 the response to it, sorry?
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1        A.  Yes.

2        Q.  And without going into the specifics,

3 let's just go ahead and say so.  Within one year of

4 the final order as a condition of obtaining a

5 certificate and order in this proceeding, would

6 Rock Island forgo seeking eminent domain authority

7 under Section 8-509 of the Public Utilities Act?

8           MR. MACBRIDE:  Can I have the question

9 repeated, please?

10           MR. PHILLIPS:  Do you want me to restate

11 it or repeat it?

12        I will just read it straight from here.

13        Q.  Would Rock Island accept as a condition

14 to the certificate and order it is requesting in

15 this proceeding that Rock Island be prohibited from

16 seeking eminent domain order under the Public

17 Utilities Act, Section 8-509 within one year of the

18 date of the final order?

19           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, I object to this

20 question on the same grounds that were stated in

21 the response to the data request which I believe

22 you have in front of you.

23           MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, I will

24 withdraw the question.
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1        Q.  Mr. Detweiler, you did prepare this data

2 request response, correct?

3        A.  That's correct.

4        Q.  I will just get it in through motion.

5        I would refer you, Mr. Detweiler, then, to

6 your direct testimony on page 39, lines 894 through

7 896.  If you just let me know when you are there,

8 that would be great.

9        After reviewing your testimony are you able

10 to tell me now whether or not Rock Island will not

11 seek eminent domain under any circumstances?

12        A.  I would use the same language in

13 responding to that, that I used in my testimony

14 here at line 894.  Rock Island will not seek

15 eminent domain on a parcel unless and until it has

16 exhausted reasonable efforts to acquire

17 transmission line easements through a negotiated

18 purchase.

19        Q.  Okay.  So Rock Island will not say that

20 it will not seek eminent domain authority; is that

21 correct?

22        A.  We will not seek eminent domain

23 authority unless and until we have exhausted

24 reasonable voluntary efforts.
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1        Q.  Sorry.  Maybe I'm not asking a simple

2 enough question.  But the simple fact of the matter

3 is under certain circumstances Rock Island may seek

4 eminent domain authority; is that correct?

5        A.  That is correct.

6        Q.  Okay.  If Rock Island has to seek

7 eminent domain authority or chooses to do so, will

8 it come back to this Commission to do so?

9        A.  Yes, Rock Island would need to submit an

10 additional application.

11        Q.  Would it do so under Section 8-509 of

12 the Public Utilities Act?

13        A.  It is my understanding that that is,

14 subject to check, that is 8-509, yes.

15        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Would -- at this

16 point, Mr. Detweiler, are you aware of the amount

17 of or the percentage of land needed to build a line

18 that Rock Island already has an easement for?

19        A.  You're restricting the question to

20 Illinois?

21        Q.  Illinois, yes.

22        A.  A percentage?

23        Q.  Percentage, estimate, whatever you can

24 give me.
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1        A.  It is going to be a very small number.

2        Q.  Small, small percentage, that's fine.

3        A.  Yeah.

4        Q.  Does Rock Island, has it estimated how

5 many landowners it may have difficulty getting

6 easements from that would actually have to come

7 back and seek eminent domain authority on?

8        A.  No, we have not.

9        Q.  So your testimony today is you have --

10 Rock Island has not estimated any, has no

11 estimation of how many landowners it would have to

12 seek eminent domain or file condemnation actions

13 against?

14        A.  No, we would develop that estimate, if

15 any, after the lines were certificated and after we

16 have attempted extensive voluntary easement

17 acquisition.

18        Q.  Rock Island submitted certain exhibits

19 in this, in this case or this docket that have

20 schedules set.  Those schedules can vary, though,

21 correct?

22        A.  Schedules can vary.  I'm not sure which

23 schedules you are referring to.

24        Q.  One of ComEd's cross exhibits consists
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1 of the data request response, ComEd Exhibit 7.19,

2 ComEd Cross Exhibit No. 3.

3        A.  I don't know that I have that in front

4 of me.

5        Q.  Well, subject to check --

6        A.  What was the number?

7           MR. PHILLIPS:  May I approach, your

8 Honor?

9           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

10        Q.  If I can just hand you that.  That is

11 ComEd Cross Exhibit No. 3.  This is a --

12 Mr. Detweiler, this is certain activities and

13 certain completion dates and basically a proposed

14 schedule for the way this is going to move forward

15 or that your project is going to move forward; is

16 that correct?

17           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, I object to

18 examining the witness on this exhibit.  If you look

19 at the exhibit, which I believe you have in front

20 of you, as we have done on all our data request

21 responses we have identified the person responsible

22 for preparing the response which was David Berry

23 and the applicable witness which is the witness who

24 would be available to answer cross questions about
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1 the exhibit.  Here we have identified Mr. Berry and

2 Mr. Wynter.  So Mr. Detweiler has not been put

3 forth as a witness who would be available to

4 respond to questions about this data request

5 response.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

7           MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, I believe

8 Mr. Detweiler will be able to talk about his

9 knowledge of the deadlines that are set forth in

10 this exhibit whether or not he prepared it.  It is

11 relevant to the questioning.

12           JUDGE JONES:  Well, the question is

13 somewhat preliminary in nature.  I think I will

14 allow the question.  We will see where the question

15 leads us, and if there are further objections, we

16 will deal with them.

17           MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, your Honor.

18           JUDGE ROBINSON:  That is the ruling.

19        A.  Sorry, what was the question?

20        Q.  Well, there is certain deadlines set

21 forth on this document in front of you.  Suffice it

22 to say, Rock Island has a general schedule for how

23 it is proposing to move forward in the planning and

24 construction of this line; is that correct?
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1           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question.

2 Mischaracterizes the information provided, not

3 describe in the deadlines.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Is that a different

5 question?  Are you saying that question is

6 different than the one that was asked previously?

7           MR. MACBRIDE:  I think so.

8           MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, I will just

9 withdraw it.  I don't want to get bogged down in

10 this.

11        Q.  Mr. Detweiler, does Rock Island have any

12 idea how long it is going to take to build this

13 line?

14        A.  Yes.

15        Q.  Does it have certain milestones that it

16 wants to meet in doing so?

17        A.  Yes.

18        Q.  Is one of those milestones negotiating

19 with landowners for easements?

20        A.  Yes.

21        Q.  Is one of those milestones condemning on

22 property of individuals who refuse to sign easement

23 agreements or that an agreement cannot be reached?

24        A.  Not necessarily.
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1        Q.  So Rock Island has no idea if or has no

2 estimation how many people it may have to condemn

3 their land for easements?

4           JUDGE JONES:  Is that a question?

5           MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

6        Q.  Correct?

7        A.  I believe I have already stated several

8 minutes ago Rock Island has no such estimate, and

9 we would develop such an estimate after we receive

10 the certificate and after, if and when -- we would

11 not do that unless and until we had exhausted

12 voluntary means of easement acquisition.

13        Q.  So as we look at this exhibit, there is

14 no condemnation proceedings on it; there is no time

15 period for that?

16           JUDGE JONES:  Is that a question?

17           MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

18        Q.  Is that correct?  Is there no

19 condemnation proceedings on this document?

20        A.  If you will refer to line 18.  Line 18

21 says Rock Island completes all necessary

22 right-of-way agreements.  So that would include and

23 contemplate any use of eminent domain if it was

24 necessary.
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1        Q.  Okay.  So it is your testimony here

2 today that eminent domain usage would fall under

3 line 18, and it would be an agreement that a

4 judicial order -- sorry, I will withdraw that

5 question.  Strike it.

6        Is it your testimony here today that a

7 right-of-way agreement is the same as a judicial

8 order that condemns the property of a private

9 landowner?

10        A.  I'm not an attorney.  I don't understand

11 the question.

12        Q.  Okay.  Line 18 reads Rock Island

13 completes all necessary right-of-way agreements,

14 correct?

15        A.  Correct.

16        Q.  So your testimony here today that a form

17 of a right-of-way agreement is a judicial order

18 condemning the land of a private landowner for an

19 easement for the Rock Island Clean Line?

20        A.  That seems reasonable to me.  Again, I'm

21 not an attorney.

22        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Obviously you would

23 have to have easements for the entirety of the line

24 in order to build the line, correct?
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1        A.  You certainly would need to have

2 easements for the entirety of the line to complete

3 construction.  There are scenarios where you could

4 potentially begin construction with just a few

5 parcels or some limited number of parcels

6 remaining.

7        Q.  Okay.  Thank you very much.  We are done

8 with that part.

9        So Rock Island is going to make use of the

10 agricultural impact mitigation agreement as part of

11 its easements with landowners; is that correct?

12        A.  Rock Island has agreed to incorporate

13 the agricultural impact mitigation agreement by

14 reference into our easement document.

15        Q.  That's reflected in Section 18 of that

16 document, the AIMA, subject to check I suppose?

17        A.  I have got it right here.  Might as well

18 look.

19        Q.  Okay.

20        A.  Yes, it is 18, Section 18D.

21        Q.  Do you believe by incorporating it by

22 reference as per that section that it becomes

23 enforceable by the landowners?

24        A.  So the, the language of Section 18D
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1 states -- I might as well read it.  It's quite

2 short.  Clean Line will incorporate by reference

3 the terms of this agreement in easement agreements

4 executed with landowners on agricultural land in

5 Illinois.  However, in the event of a conflict

6 between this agreement and an easement agreement,

7 the easement agreement will control.

8        Q.  Okay.  Is it your testimony here today

9 that landowners will be able to, subject to the

10 easement agreement having different language, be

11 able to enforce this agricultural impact mitigation

12 agreement against Rock Island?

13           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question

14 as calling for a legal conclusion by the witness.

15           MR. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Detweiler has

16 testified at length about this agricultural impact

17 mitigation agreement and the fact that it should

18 make landowners feel more at ease and contains

19 special provisions that aren't in other places and

20 otherwise suggested that landowners should be

21 secure in this.  So whether or not it is actually

22 enforceable has been suggested by Mr. Detweiler.

23               JUDGE JONES:  I think the witness

24 has opened the door on it.  Now, whether he
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1 understands the question and can answer it is sort

2 of a different, different question, but the

3 objection is overruled.  So, sir, if you understand

4 the and --  A.  Can you please repeat the question?

5           JUDGE JONES:  Make sure you repeat it,

6 though.  I don't want to get into a scenario where

7 it is slightly different and then you get an

8 objection to it as a different question.

9           MR. PHILLIPS:  I understand.  Just in

10 case, your Honor, would it be okay if I just have

11 the question recalled?

12                  (The reporter read the question.)

13        A.  So I believe it is several points in

14 testimony, in rebuttal testimony we have talked

15 about the process of resolving any disputes that

16 would occur with landowners, and one of the things

17 that we have discussed is the presence of the

18 independent agricultural inspector, and the role of

19 the independent agricultural inspector is to

20 enforce all agreements that, that Rock Island and

21 the landowner have agreed to so that if it should

22 happen, which we do not expect that it would, but

23 if it should happen things are occurring in the

24 field that are other than what are agreed to in
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1 those various agreements, then the ag inspector has

2 the authority to, to stop construction or otherwise

3 resolve the situation.

4        So that's one way in which it could be

5 resolved, and the agreement is incorporated by

6 reference in terms of the easement agreement.  So

7 unless there was some other agreement that

8 conflicted with that, then that would be

9 enforceable.

10           MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, I move to

11 strike everything other than the last portion of

12 that answer where Mr. Detweiler said it would be

13 enforceable as nonresponsive to the question.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Motion -- you are moving to

15 strike it except for what?

16           MR. PHILLIPS:  The portion where

17 Mr. Detweiler said at the end that it would be

18 enforceable.

19           JUDGE JONES:  I'm not sure what that does

20 to the context of the --

21           MR. PHILLIPS:  Well, just a motion to

22 strike the whole answer as nonresponsive then, your

23 Honor.

24           MR. MACBRIDE:  May I respond?
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

2           MR. MACBRIDE:  Mr. Detweiler was asked

3 whether it is his testimony today whether

4 incorporating the agricultural mitigation impact

5 agreement into the easement agreement would make it

6 enforceable by landowners.  He explained the manner

7 in which he believes it would be enforceable, and

8 his entire answer was directed to that subject.

9           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, can you read

10 the question back, please?

11                  (The reporter read the answer.)

12           JUDGE JONES:  The objection is overruled.

13 I think the witness made an attempt to answer the

14 question that was asked.

15           MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, your Honor.

16        Q.  Just one more question on this point.

17 Mr. Detweiler, do you believe the incorporation by

18 reference of the agricultural impact mitigation

19 agreement into the easement agreements that Rock

20 Island intends to negotiate creates a legally

21 binding and enforceable agreement between the

22 parties, the parties being the landowner and Rock

23 Island?

24        A.  You are asking me for my legal opinion?
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1        Q.  I'm just asking for your opinion.

2        A.  So my opinion is that it is incorporated

3 into the easement agreement and is therefore

4 enforceable.  However, in the event of a conflict

5 between the agreement and the easement agreement,

6 the easement agreement will control.

7        Q.  Thank you.  If Rock Island sought

8 eminent domain authority, the AIMA on its face does

9 not protect landowners whose land may be condemned;

10 is that correct?

11        A.  Can you explain the question?

12        Q.  The AIMA, on its face, if you review

13 that document, it doesn't mention any landowners

14 who may have their land condemned; is that correct?

15        A.  Doesn't mention any landowners at all,

16 does it?  I don't understand the question.

17        Q.  This document is only for people who are

18 signing easement agreements with Rock Island; is

19 that correct?

20           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, again, I would

21 object because the document which has been admitted

22 speaks for itself.  The parties can argue as to

23 what is in it or not in it.  The Commission will be

24 able to read it and determine what is in it or not
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1 in it.

2           MR. PHILLIPS:  If Mr. Detweiler doesn't

3 know he can just say I don't know, and we can move

4 on.  I don't mean to request that he read the

5 entire document.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, can we have

7 the question read back, please?

8        I'm going to make one notation.  I think if

9 there is an objection to make, it needs to be made

10 fairly quickly rather than maybe 20, 30 seconds

11 later after the witness has been looking at

12 something and has not come up with an answer.

13        I want to give the witness every opportunity

14 to look through things, but I don't want that

15 interpreted an invitation to jump in with an

16 objection because is it taking the witness awhile

17 to do that.

18        So as long as we are clear on that, then I

19 will be happy to give the witnesses plenty of,

20 plenty of time to sort through, sort through the

21 material and to try to comprehend how it relates to

22 the question as pending.

23                  (The reporter read the question.)

24        A.  Shall I proceed?
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, I think that's a -- I

2 don't see anything objectionable there.  As with

3 some other questions, if you understand the

4 question and can answer it, please do so.

5        A.  Okay.  So the question, the language of

6 the question is this agreement is for only people

7 who signed easement agreements, and so this

8 agreement is for -- that phrase to me, I would not

9 say that the agreement is restricted in principle

10 only to landowners who sign an easement agreement,

11 although it may only be enforceable by landowners

12 who sign an easement agreement through voluntary

13 means.

14        So what I am -- the distinction I'm trying

15 to make is that Kiewit Power Constructors intends

16 to utilize this agreement as a general starting

17 point for their construction practices throughout

18 the project area in Illinois, and, you know,

19 whether a parcel was obtained through voluntary

20 means or was obtained through eminent domain, for

21 instance, I think in terms of the decompaction

22 measures, they're going to use 18 inches of

23 chiseled depth in cropland areas as a starting

24 point for what level of decompaction they should
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1 utilize.

2        So given the way the term is phrased, I do

3 think it is very likely that this agreement would

4 also have an impact on parcels that were obtained

5 by eminent domain.  However, as I previously

6 stated, it may not be legally enforceable if the,

7 if the parcel is obtained by eminent domain.

8        Q.  Thank you.  Would Rock Island agree to,

9 as a condition of obtaining the certificate and

10 order here today, to have these terms included in

11 any order that it, condemnation order it may

12 receive if it needs to do so?

13        A.   I'm sorry.  I missed the second half of

14 the question.

15         Q.  That's fine.  I will just -- Rock

16 Island, if it has to seek eminent domain authority,

17 will have to condemn on certain people's property

18 or may have to institute judicial proceedings to

19 condemn on certain people's property, correct?

20        And are you aware that generally the way

21 that works is at the end of that you get a -- at

22 the end of those proceedings you get an order from

23 a judge that condemns the property and would, in

24 your case, hopefully grant or give an easement to
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1 Rock Island.

2        Would Rock Island agree as part of that

3 order to include these or include these terms of

4 the AIMA in any of those condemnation orders?

5        A.  Thank you.  I understand the question

6 now.  So I am not authorized to make a decision

7 like that for Rock Island.  However, that does

8 sound reasonable to me.

9        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  On Exhibit 7.0, which

10 is your direct testimony, you state that Rock

11 Island intends to file with the Iowa Utility Board

12 for franchise in 2013.

13        From other people's testimony I have heard

14 today and yesterday, is that still true?

15        A.  So the Iowa franchise process is

16 different than the Illinois process, and so there

17 are actually different, different milestones to be

18 considered filing in Iowa.  So we have opened

19 dockets in all 16 counties in Iowa.  As of next

20 week we will be, we will have completed, weather

21 allowing, all of the initial Iowa Utility Board's

22 informational meetings that are required to be

23 completed prior to filing the actual petition if

24 you will.
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1        Q.  So then at the end of that you mentioned

2 filing the petition.  Does Rock Island still plan

3 to file the petition in the next 26 days?

4        A.  No, Rock Island does not.

5        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  I want to refer you

6 to your rebuttal testimony which is Exhibit 7.30,

7 lines 147 through 156.

8        A.  What was the line number again?

9        Q.  Lines 147 through 156.  In there you

10 interpret certain scientific studies and reached

11 the conclusion that quote long-term impacts from

12 compaction would be rather small in crop yield

13 percentage terms; is that correct?

14           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question.

15 I think it mischaracterizes the testimony,

16 particularly when the question says Mr. Detweiler

17 interprets certain studies.

18           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

19           MR. PHILLIPS:  I believe Mr. Detweiler is

20 stating in his testimony that he is reading certain

21 scientific studies and that he is providing his

22 opinion on them.  Clearly interpreted them.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, can I have

24 the question read back, please?
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1                  (The reporter read the question.)

2           JUDGE JONES:  Objection overruled.

3 Counsel is asking the witness if that's essentially

4 what he is saying.  I think that's appropriate

5 cross.  If the witness doesn't believe that

6 properly characterizes what he said, what he

7 intended to say, he can tell us.

8        A.  Yes.  So I reviewed the two studies that

9 were provided by the ILA and summarized them.  My

10 conclusion was that therefore any long-term impacts

11 from compaction would be rather small in crop yield

12 percentage terms and would only occur on a small

13 percentage of the easement area.

14        Q.  Okay.  Then I direct you to your

15 surrebuttal testimony, Exhibit 7.35.  That would be

16 lines 76 through 101.  In there, Mr. Detweiler

17 isn't it true that you interpret four separate

18 scientific papers and reached the conclusion that,

19 "The avoidance measures that Rock Island and KPC

20 plan to use will ultimately minimize the overall

21 soil compaction that will occur during

22 construction."

23        A.  What line was the quote?

24        Q.  Sorry, I will withdraw that question.  I
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1 will direct you to lines 324 through 360 of your,

2 of that same testimony.

3        A.  Sorry, 324 you said?

4        Q.  Yes, 324.  There again you discuss

5 certain scientific studies; is that correct?

6        A.  In this context I am again discussing

7 studies that were introduced by the ILA.

8        Q.  Is it true that you say the studies,

9 additional studies that Dr. Marshall now introduces

10 are ill designed to support his contention?  That

11 would be lines 324 through 325.

12        A.  That is correct.

13        Q.  Overall in lines 324 through 360, would

14 it be a correct -- would it be a fair summary that

15 you're interpreting scientific studies,

16 their Methods and conclude the information gleaned

17 from these studies is not applicable to the

18 situation at hand?

19        A.  So I did not introduce these studies,

20 the Illinois Landowners Association introduced

21 these studies.  I reviewed them when -- well, they

22 didn't introduce, they provided them.  They cited

23 them as a data request.  They did not introduce

24 them.  I reviewed those studies, and I found those



441

1 studies in a number of ways to be not applicable to

2 the situation that we are discussing with Rock

3 Island Clean Line.

4        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Moving on, does Rock

5 Island intend to compensate aerial applicators for

6 lost business if the aerial applicator can show the

7 loss is attributable to the building of the line?

8        A.  No.

9        Q.  Does Rock Island intend to compensate

10 any person who may have timber on their land except

11 for that timber that is already commercially

12 marketable?

13        A.  Can you repeat that?

14        Q.  Does Rock Island intend to compensate

15 any persons who may have timber on their land

16 except for that timber that is already commercially

17 marketable?

18        A.  Okay.  So you are asking -- can you just

19 reframe that or restate that?

20        Q.  A baby tree can't be sold for lumber,

21 correct, a sapling?

22        A.  Would have to be some valuable tree.

23 Yeah.

24        Q.  Of course.  So commercially marketable
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1 trees would be those that are grown of a certain

2 quality, but the potential -- correct?

3        But there is a potential, though, for that

4 sapling to become a valuable tree; is that correct?

5        A.  Over time.

6        Q.  Yes.  Is it true Rock Island is only

7 compensating landowners who have commercially

8 marketable timber for that, that is already

9 commercially marketable?

10           Mr. MACBRIDE:  Object to the question.  I

11 believe this is unclear.  I assume the question is

12 not clear that Mr. Phillips is referring to

13 compensation for timber that is cut down in the

14 process of constructing the line.

15           MR. PHILLIPS:  I will withdraw my

16 question.

17        Q.  But for the timber that is cut down

18 during the construction of the line, Rock Island

19 only intends to compensate for that timber that is

20 already commercially marketable; is that correct?

21        A.  I would frame the question the other

22 way.  Rock Island does not intend to compensate for

23 loss of timber that has no value.

24        Q.  Is it your testimony here today that a
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1 sapling that may have value some day is not

2 valuable right now?

3        A.  So our view of compensation is

4 comprehensive, and we believe that we have put

5 forward a strong compensation package, and that the

6 compensation includes 90% of the fair market value

7 of the easement area plus a structure payment plus

8 crop damages or in the case of timber, the value of

9 commercially marketable timber.

10        There gets to be a point of specificity with

11 things of very, very, very minimal value that

12 cannot be easily calculated, and so Rock Island's

13 approach in those matters is to offer very good

14 compensation in terms of the percentage of the

15 easement, value of the easement area and offer a

16 structure payment and the crop damages and

17 compensate for the commercially valuable timber,

18 and that, and that that is sufficient.

19        Q.  So it is your testimony here today that

20 you believe that trees that may not yet be

21 commercially marketable are being compensated for

22 by a very generous easement agreement?

23        A.  I believe my prior answer was more

24 complete and covered your question.
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1        Q.  If I could just get a yes or no answer

2 to that question, that would be great.

3        A.  I personally would be more comfortable

4 with my prior answer as it was more complete.

5        Q.  Was my question unclear just now?

6        I don't mean to get bogged down on this, but

7 was it unclear?  I can rephrase it perhaps.

8        A.  Your question seemed to be requesting me

9 to discard some elements of our easement

10 compensation package, and I believe our easement

11 compensation package needs to be evaluated as a

12 whole, and so I am reluctant to discard some

13 elements of that from consideration.

14        Q.  Is it true Rock Island only purports to

15 compensate landowners for reduced crop yields due

16 to soil compaction for a reasonable time period?

17        A.  Well, the alternative would be to

18 compensate for an unreasonable time period.  So

19 yes, that's correct.

20        Q.  Yes is your answer then.

21        Rock Island has not set any standards for

22 determining how long that reasonable time period

23 is, has it?

24        A.  Rock Island believes that those
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1 determinations will need to be made on a parcel

2 specific basis depending on what the instances are

3 in that particular area.

4        And furthermore Rock Island has taken and

5 will take many steps to avoid, minimize compaction.

6 Avoiding compaction and minimizing compaction such

7 as confining construction traffic to small areas of

8 the fields in question, the use of aggregate and

9 geotextile material that's been testified to by a

10 key witness, Mr. Adam, and that Rock Island

11 furthermore has discussed in the AIMA and elsewhere

12 that it will take measures to decompact soil as

13 appropriate, and, in fact, if the landowner

14 believes there is some level of decompaction that

15 should be sought that is beyond what the AIMA

16 directly requires, that Rock Island is willing to

17 negotiate that on a specific basis.

18        So Rock Island believes that all -- that we

19 have taken many, many actions in this regard and

20 will take more actions, and that discussion will

21 need to occur on a parcel by parcel basis.

22        Q.  Okay.  Well, that's great, but what I

23 asked was there are no standards currently set; is

24 that correct?
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1        A.  There are no standards set regarding?

2        Q.  I will just reread the question I read

3 just before the last one.

4        A.  Yeah.

5        Q.  Rock Island has set no standards for

6 determining that time period, has it?  It is a yes

7 or no question, sir.

8        A.  The time period?

9        Q.  The reasonable time period referred to

10 in your testimony, line 542 of 7.3, the one we have

11 been discussing.

12        A.  Okay.  So that will need to be

13 determined on a parcel by parcel basis.

14        Q.  Whether or not there is a standard will

15 need to be determined on a parcel to parcel basis?

16        I'm not trying to be difficult,

17 Mr. Detweiler.  I want to know if there is a

18 standard set right now.  If there is not, you can

19 say there is not.  I understand there is going to

20 have to be more determinations later.

21        A.  There is no one size fits all standard.

22        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Okay.  Does Rock

23 Island know the number of independent agricultural

24 inspectors that it will have on the ground during
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1 construction at this time?

2        A.  No.

3        Q.  Okay.  Who is paying for the independent

4 agricultural inspectors?

5        A.  Rock Island Clean Line.

6        Q.  In your testimony you state that several

7 Illinois Landowners Alliance witnesses have denied

8 Rock Island ability to communicate with them; is

9 that correct?

10           JUDGE JONES:  Where are you in that?  Are

11 you looking at a piece of testimony there?

12           MR. PHILLIPS:  No, my notes.  It is

13 Exhibit 7.30, lines 567 through 571 would be one

14 such example, but it is replete through

15 Mr. Detweiler's testimony.

16           MR. MACBRIDE:  What was the example

17 cited, please?

18           MR. PHILLIPS:  Exhibit 7.30, lines 567

19 through 571.

20        Q.  I believe if you look at line 568 is

21 where it would start, third word.  That testimony,

22 I want to make sure it is clear that Rock Island is

23 aware it can communicate with the landowners that

24 have sent these written notices to stop
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1 communicating with them as long -- but it has to be

2 by writing, correct?

3        A.  That is my understanding, yeah.

4        Q.  So Rock Island could have written to

5 them if they wished to?

6           JUDGE JONES:  Is that a question?

7           MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

8        A.  Just reviewing the overall context of

9 this.

10        Q.  That's fine.  I could also refer you if

11 it helps, Mr. Detweiler, to your Exhibit 7.32.

12        A.  I'm not sure where all some of these

13 things are discussed, but one of the concerns

14 raised by Mr. Simpson was that he claims that there

15 is an eagle's nest in great proximity to the

16 proposed center line of the project, and he has

17 denied survey access.  So we can't send an

18 ornithologist to go check that out as we normally

19 would, and so he has written or called, I don't

20 remember in this case, denying us access.  And so

21 we know we can't get the ornithologist on there.

22 Sending a letter doesn't serve a purpose in that

23 particular instance.

24        Q.  So it is your testimony here today that
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1 sending a letter to Mr. Simpson asking if you could

2 send an ornithologist to confirm the existence of

3 an eagle's nest is not, would serve no purpose?

4        A.  Well, because he specifically denied

5 access.

6        Q.  But you were able to write Mr. Simpson;

7 is that correct?

8        A.  We are able to write him, but he has

9 written us denying access.

10        Q.  Okay.  But he didn't try to get access

11 for any particular thing such as examining for

12 eagles' nests?

13        A.  In this instance it seemed to us the

14 most respectful path to wait for the Commission to

15 certificate the project.

16        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

17           MR. PHILLIPS:  I don't believe I have any

18 other questions, your Honor.  I don't think I had

19 any exhibits that needed motioned in, but I would

20 like your Honor to strike -- motion to move to

21 strike lines of Exhibit 7.30, lines 147 through 156

22 on that exhibit.

23           MR. MACBRIDE:  Sorry, what exhibit?

24           MR. PHILLIPS:  Exhibit 7.30, lines 147
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1 through 156.

2          JUDGE JONES:  These motions will not be

3 granted.  The testimony was moved into the record,

4 and there were no responses made at the time, so it

5 is in the record.

6           MR. PHILLIPS:  Well, your Honor, if I

7 may, it is through cross-examination and only after

8 cross-examination did it become clear Mr. Detweiler

9 has no knowledge or --

10           JUDGE JONES:  The ruling has been made.

11 I mean, the opportunity was there --

12           MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, your Honor.

13           JUDGE JONES:  -- to respond.  If any

14 party felt that there needed to be a withholding of

15 that ruling until after cross or motions, that

16 could have been stated, but as has happened it was

17 not so stated.  There were no objections or

18 responses to the admission.  There were no motions

19 pending at that time or before that either.  So the

20 ruling, the ruling was made, and the items are

21 admitted.

22           MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, your Honor.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Certainly does not prevent

24 cross-examination on them, but they are in the
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1 record.

2        How about with respect to the ILA, ILA DR

3 4.01?  I'm not sure what the intention was there.

4 Maybe there is no plan with regard to that.  I just

5 want to make sure we don't move on past that if you

6 intended to do something with it.

7           MR. PHILLIPS:  Sorry, your Honor.  I did

8 have this one set aside.  I believe Mr. Detweiler

9 did testify to this, and I guess I would move to

10 enter that data request into the record as ILA

11 Cross Exhibit 2 which we would be happy to file on

12 e-Docket.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Any objections or responses

14 to ILA Cross Exhibit 2 being made part of the

15 evidentiary record?

16           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes, we object to the

17 admission for the same, same reasons that were

18 stated on the face of the response.  The questions

19 were unclear, too general to enable the company to

20 provide, to understand what it was responding to.

21 So I think the question as phrased and the response

22 provides nothing valuable to the record.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

24           MR. PHILLIPS:  It is pretty clear
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1 reviewing 4.01 that Rock Island, Mr. Detweiler

2 understood the question well enough to answer parts

3 A and B quite clearly with the answer of no period.

4 So it seems it is not that vague, and it was

5 understood.  So I believe it should be admitted.

6 Again, Mr. Detweiler prepared it.

7           JUDGE JONES:  Well, I think counsel need

8 to consult on this.  If you can't reach an

9 agreement we will take it up later.  We might take

10 argument at the time.  I might put a filing

11 schedule on there so you can provide written

12 argument on it, and we will -- but we will revisit

13 the status of this exhibit at some later point

14 rather than spending anymore time right now arguing

15 back and forth on it.

16           MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, your Honor.

17           JUDGE JONES:  Off the record.

18                  (Discussion off the record.)

19           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Hereby

20 recess for lunch until 1:30.

21                     (Lunch break)

22           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

23 Mr. Davis, did you want to go next?

24           MR. FOSCO:  ComEd is ready to go next,
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1 your Honor.

2                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

3 QUESTIONS BY MR. FOSCO:

4        Q.  Good afternoon, Mr. Detweiler.  My name

5 is Carmen Fosco, and I represent Commonwealth

6 Edison Company.

7        In your testimony you refer to the fact that

8 there is an AC section and a DC section of the

9 proposed route; is that correct?

10        A.  That's correct.

11        Q.  And Rock Island is requesting a

12 Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity for

13 both sections of said route; is that correct?

14        A.  Correct.

15        Q.  And as you understand it, does the

16 request for a Section 8-503 order apply to both

17 sections of the route?

18        A.  I'm not familiar with the Public

19 Utilities Act by numbers of the statutes.

20        Q.  Okay.  What are the end points of the AC

21 section of the line?

22        A.  What are the end points of the AC

23 section of the line?

24        Q.  Yes.
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1        A.  The end points of the AC section of the

2 line are the converter station at the north end and

3 then the Collins substation at the southeast.

4        Q.  All on the eastern end of the line?

5        A.  Correct.

6        Q.  Are you familiar with Dr. Galli's

7 surrebuttal testimony?

8        A.  If you can be more specific.

9        Q.  Sure.  Are you familiar with Dr. Galli's

10 testimony that the 300 -- 345 765 kV transformers

11 could be located at the Rock Island's eastern

12 converter station site along with the converter

13 station, and Rock Island could build 765 kV lines

14 from the converter station to the Collins

15 substation along the route approved by the

16 Commission?

17        And I will represent to you that's from page

18 41 of Rock Island Exhibit 2.15 at lines 899 and

19 903.

20        A.  Subject to check.

21        Q.  Okay.  And you were familiar with that

22 portion or at some point became familiar with that

23 portion of his testimony?

24        A.  Yeah.
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1        Q.  Is that a yes?  I'm sorry, just --

2        A.  Yes.  Sorry.  Yes, I read it.  I did

3 review it at some point, yes.

4        Q.  Thank you.  And is Dr. Galli referring

5 to the AC section of the route that you and I just

6 talked about in that context?

7        A.  In terms of the location of the

8 transformers and how that would connect to the

9 substation?

10        Q.  How a 765 kV or how 765 kV lines could

11 connect to a converter station at the Collins

12 substation?

13        A.  Correct.

14        Q.  Do you have an understanding as to

15 whether the 765 kV scenario discussed by Dr. Galli

16 would install multiple 765 kilovolt lines or just

17 one?

18        A.  Subject to check, my understanding is it

19 is just one.

20        Q.  Okay.  Do you know if under that

21 scenario Rock Island would use, the type of

22 structural design it would use, whether it would be

23 poles or towers?

24        A.  So the agricultural impact mitigation
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1 agreement requires us to use poles, monopole or

2 lattice mast or basically single foundation type

3 structures, you know, for most tangent

4 applications.  There are some engineering

5 exceptions that are provided.

6        Q.  Do you know if a -- strike that.

7        Do you know if -- you said it was a single

8 line, subject to check, for the 765 kV line.

9        Do you know if it is a double circuit 765 kV

10 line?

11        A.  What I attempted to say was I believe it

12 is a single circuit 765 kV line subject to check.

13        Q.  Okay.  To your knowledge has a 765 kV

14 line been installed on a pole in Illinois or in

15 PJM?

16        A.  I do not know if it has been installed

17 or not.  However, early in our conversations about

18 the AIMA I had conversations with, I believe it was

19 either people at Exelon Transmission or at ComEd,

20 and they indicated that they have no problem with

21 committing to monopole structures for 765 kV lines.

22        Q.  Who did you talk to, if you recall?

23        A.  I could, I could guess, but I couldn't

24 guarantee it under oath.
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1        Q.  Was it Mr. Naumann, N-A-U-M-A-N-N?

2        A.  It was not Mr. Naumann.

3        Q.  Was it Jeff Yuknis?

4        A.  It may have been Jeff Yuknis.

5           JUDGE JONES:  Spelling on that for the

6 court reporter perhaps?

7        A.  Y-U-K N-I-S.

8        Q.  Isn't it correct that Rock Island has

9 indicated it has not yet determined what structure

10 it would use for a 765 kV line?

11        A.  You should consult with Dr. Galli on

12 that question.  He is our Rock Island witness.

13        Q.  Are you familiar with Rock Island's

14 petition in this proceeding?

15        A.  Yes.

16        Q.  Yes.  And is it correct that Rock Island

17 seeks certification of a 270 foot right-of-way for

18 two parallel 345 kV transmission lines?

19        A.  For the AC section?

20        Q.  Yes.

21        A.  Correct.

22        Q.  Okay.  And is it correct that the

23 petition does not seek certification for a 765 kV

24 AC line?
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1        A.  To the best of my knowledge, correct.

2        Q.  Okay.

3        A.  I believe in that instance if it was a

4 765 kV line that was coming out of the Collins

5 converter station, then we would submit some

6 additional work.

7           MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, with all due

8 respect to the witness I move to strike.  There was

9 not a question pending, I do not believe.

10           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

11           MR. MACBRIDE:  I think he was just

12 completing his answer.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, can we have

14 the question and answer, please?

15              (The reporter read the question and

16              answer.)

17           JUDGE JONES:  Not sure what was pending.

18 There was the word "okay", the two things that the

19 witness said.  So was that another question or --

20           MR. FOSCO:  No, it was not.

21           JUDGE JONES:  -- what was it?

22           MR. FOSCO:  Bad habit.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Appreciate the candor in

24 the answer.  Kind of gave the witness an
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1 opportunity to sort of pick up where he left off I

2 suppose you could say.  So in a sense he was

3 completing his, completing his answer.

4           MR. FOSCO:  That's fine.  I will move on,

5 your Honor.

6        Q.  Mr. Detweiler, are you also responsible

7 for overseeing acquisition of land in the vicinity

8 of the Collins substation on which Rock Island

9 transformation facilities could be located?

10        A.  I serve as Director of Development for

11 Rock Island, and so I jointly manage our easement

12 and other land acquisition practices along with

13 Deann Lanz who is our Director of Land Services or

14 something to that effect.  So we work together

15 along with the rest of the team to determine, you

16 know, what the needs are and move forward with

17 those.

18        Q.  Are you familiar with Rock Island's

19 pursuit of possibly purchasing some land from

20 Midwest Generation near the Collins substation?

21        A.  So there is a parcel adjacent to the

22 Collins station which is currently owned by Midwest

23 Gen.  Rock Island has been in conversations with

24 Midwest Gen about acquiring some of that land.
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1 That land, that land is -- all of the Midwest Gen

2 assets are currently being acquired by another

3 company, so we are waiting for that to settle to

4 proceed further.

5        Q.  Okay.  You have anticipated a number of

6 questions, and within that answer did that -- I

7 assume there was a yes, that you are familiar with

8 those discussions?

9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  And as you just mentioned, obviously you

11 are aware that Midwest Generation's corporate

12 parent has entered into an agreement with NRG

13 Energy Holdings to possibly purchase its assets,

14 correct?

15        A.  That's correct.

16        Q.  And would you agree that the potential

17 assets sale may complicate efforts to acquire the

18 property if that is pursued and might delay the

19 conclusion of that process?

20        A.  No, I would not.

21        Q.  Are you aware or do you know -- strike

22 that.

23        Do you know whether Midwest Generation or

24 its parent have filed for bankruptcy relief?
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1        A.  Midwest Gen is a large company, and

2 there may be multiple affiliates.  I know there is

3 a Midwest Gen bankruptcy present, but I don't

4 necessarily have a complete grasp of which

5 affiliates it may involve.

6        Q.  Do you know if that could impact the

7 acquisition of the property we have been

8 discussing?

9        A.  My understanding is that the, that asset

10 transfer to NRG is likely to move ahead by the end

11 of this year.

12        Q.  Do you know if that's subject to any

13 approval by a bankruptcy court?

14        A.  I would have to speculate.

15        Q.  In your position as Director of the

16 Development for Clean Line, do you perform that

17 function for all of the projects under development

18 by Clean Line?

19        A.  No.

20        Q.  So do you only perform those roles for

21 Rock Island Clean Line projects?

22        A.  Let me see if I can answer your

23 question.  It is not exactly a yes or no.

24 Yesterday Mr. Skelly talked about the Rock Island
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1 staff who are dedicated to working on the Rock

2 Island project and then other Clean Line staff who

3 work across project areas.  So I supervise and

4 manage the team of people who are dedicated to Rock

5 Island, and I spend 99% of my time on the Rock

6 Island project.

7        Q.  So you would not be familiar with Clean

8 Line's efforts at routing and easements on other,

9 on other projects?

10        A.  Depending on the instance I may be aware

11 at a relatively shallow or superficial level, but I

12 may not be deeply aware.

13        Q.  Let me ask this question.  You can

14 answer if you know.  Has Clean Line obtained

15 eminent domain authority in any other jurisdiction

16 for any of the projects under development?

17        A.  I know that Clean Line has obtained

18 certificates in Indiana, Kansas and Oklahoma.  I do

19 not know if those, how and what fashion those may

20 relate to eminent domain.

21        Q.  Are you aware whether Clean Line or any

22 of its other subsidiaries have actually exercised

23 eminent domain or condemned any property in any

24 jurisdiction?
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1        A.  Not to my knowledge.  Clean Line has not

2 to my knowledge.

3        Q.  Okay.  So if and when Rock Island or any

4 other subsidiary of Clean Line exercises eminent

5 domain, that will be the first time it is

6 occurring?

7        A.  When some entity of Clean Line, if it is

8 needed, exercises eminent domain for the first

9 time, that will be the first time.

10        Q.  Okay.  You testified in your direct

11 testimony at page 39, lines 892 through 96 that

12 Rock Island is not seeking eminent domain authority

13 at this time and that Rock Island seeks to acquire

14 as much of the required right of way as possible

15 through voluntary negotiated transactions; is that

16 correct?

17        A.  That is correct.

18        Q.  Okay.  And you also indicate that Rock

19 Island will not seek eminent domain authority on a

20 parcel unless and until it has exhausted reasonable

21 efforts to acquire transmission line easements

22 through negotiated purchase, correct?

23        A.  That's correct.

24        Q.  Okay.  Is it your understanding that
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1 once under Illinois -- strike that.

2        Is it your understanding that in Illinois if

3 Rock Island obtains eminent domain authority, that

4 it obtains eminent domain authority for the whole

5 route?

6        A.  I'm not an attorney, but as made clear

7 by my testimony at lines 894 to 896, Rock Island's

8 intent, if it is determined to be needed, is to

9 apply for eminent domain on a parcel specific

10 basis.

11        Q.  Okay.  I appreciate that, but is your

12 answer that you are not able to answer my original

13 question; you don't know or are not sure?

14        A.  Well, my understanding is that in

15 Illinois, if a utility company gets to apply for

16 eminent domain, it would do so on a parcel specific

17 basis.  That is my understanding, but I'm not an

18 attorney and I --

19        Q.  Have you previously been involved in any

20 utility-related eminent domain proceedings, other

21 authorization or exercise of such authority?

22        A.  No.

23        Q.  What context did you do that?

24        A.  I said no.
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1        Q.  You said no.  I'm sorry.  Misunderstood.

2        What experience do you have with eminent

3 domain authority for a utility?

4        A.  I have never sought eminent domain.

5        Q.  So is it your testimony that Rock Island

6 will come in for authority on every separate parcel

7 of the land that it believes it needs to seek

8 eminent domain authority to obtain a right of way

9 or easement?

10        A.  You mean if eminent domain is needed?

11        Q.  You can assume that.

12        A.  You mean on a -- you mean that there

13 will be a separate filing for each one or that --

14        Q.  Correct.  That's what I am asking.  Is

15 that what you are saying on a parcel by parcel

16 basis?

17        A.  I would say that Rock Island intends to

18 provide information as to why an eminent domain

19 ruling is justified by providing evidence on a

20 parcel specific basis.  I do not know what the

21 attorneys may plan in terms of whether they would

22 file all of those separately or together at once.

23        Q.  Okay.  Again, I'm just trying to

24 understand what you meant by your testimony.  I'm
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1 not trying to seek any legal opinion.

2        But when you used the words on a parcel in

3 your testimony, what did you understand Rock Island

4 would do as far as the process?

5        Would you understand it would only come in

6 once to the Commission for whatever, 15, 20

7 parcels, or is it your view it might come before

8 the Commission multiple times for separate

9 authority for different parcels?

10        A.  What I was speaking to in my testimony

11 was that Rock Island will seek to negotiate as much

12 of the right of way as possible through voluntary

13 means and then would not seek eminent domain unless

14 and until we have exhausted reasonable efforts, and

15 then when we do that, we would provide evidence on

16 a parcel specific basis.

17        Q.  Okay.  And then I -- sorry, but I have

18 to go back to my question from earlier then.  Once

19 -- if -- assume Rock Island determines it needs to

20 seek that authority.

21        In your view would it ever need to come back

22 in for the authority if another parcel developed or

23 it needed such authority?

24        A.  Rock Island -- let me see if I can
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1 answer this way.  Rock Island may need to pursue

2 eminent domain authority on more than one parcel.

3        Q.  And on more than one occasion, multiple

4 proceedings?

5        A.  I do not know.

6        Q.  Do you know whether Rock Island's

7 current petition would provide it with eminent

8 domain authority if it is granted by the

9 Commission?

10        A.  I state clearly in line 892 of the

11 direct just as we were discussing Rock Island is

12 not seeking eminent domain authority at this time.

13 Rock Island has not applied.

14        Q.  But Rock Island is seeking an order

15 under Section 8-503 of the Public Utilities Act; is

16 that correct?

17        A.  As I stated earlier, the various

18 numerical sections of the Public Utilities Act, I'm

19 not an attorney, I'm not always familiar with them,

20 but yes, my understanding is that it would apply

21 under 503.

22        Q.  Sorry, I didn't hear the last part of

23 your answer.

24        A.  Subject to check we have applied under
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1 8-503 among other sections.

2        Q.  And you, in fact, refer to that section

3 at line 36 of your direct testimony, correct?

4        A.  Yes, correct.  Thank you.

5        Q.  And do you have an understanding as to

6 whether obtaining an order under that section is a

7 step in the process of obtaining eminent domain

8 authority?

9        A.  My non-legal understanding is that prior

10 to seeking an eminent domain order under what I

11 believe is 509, 8-509, that a certificate needs to

12 be granted under 8-406 or 8-503.

13        Q.  And is part of the reason Rock Island is

14 seeking an order under Section 8-503 to obtain that

15 part of the process of obtaining eminent domain

16 authority?

17        A.  My understanding, and I am not an

18 attorney, is that Rock Island made a determination

19 that we needed those certificates in order to

20 construct and operate the line.

21        Q.  Okay.  I believe, though, you just

22 testified that that is one of the steps in

23 obtaining, as you understand it, in obtaining --

24        A.  That's correct.
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1        Q.  -- eminent domain authority?

2        A.  That's correct.

3        Q.  Okay.

4        A.  But you had asked a different question.

5        Q.  Okay.  I'm moving on.  I understand.

6        A.  Okay.

7        Q.  In obtaining the Section 8-503 order,

8 did Rock Island seek that with respect to specific

9 parcels?

10        A.  I believe the routing, various routing

11 exhibits at various points or the attachments to

12 the petition demonstrate, you know, provide a

13 complete legal description of the route and discuss

14 every parcel that the proposed route impacts.

15        Q.  And to the extent Rock Island is asking

16 for an order under Section 8-503, it is asking for

17 that relief for all parcels along the route,

18 correct?

19        A.  Rock Island is seeking the approval of

20 the entire route.

21        Q.  Is that yes?

22        A.  What was the question?

23        Q.  That you are seeking that -- whether

24 Rock Island is seeking the 8-503 order for all
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1 parcels along the proposed route?

2        A.  Yes.

3        Q.  Okay.  I believe you earlier made

4 reference to Section 8-509?

5        A.  Yes.

6        Q.  Is that the only other step in obtaining

7 eminent domain authority as you understand it other

8 than what is already requested at this docket?

9        A.  So far as I know, yes.

10        Q.  And do you have an understanding of what

11 showing Rock Island will need to make when it files

12 a section or if it files a Section 8-509

13 proceeding?

14        A.  I believe I have at least a preliminary

15 understanding.

16        Q.  Is it basically that Rock Island would

17 show that it has reached an impasse with property

18 owners and is unable to obtain negotiated easement

19 rights for at least one property owner?

20        A.  I believe that Rock Island would need to

21 show that we have done research and demonstrated,

22 you know, who owns the title and all those sorts of

23 things, and yes, we have reached an impasse of some

24 sort.  Maybe the nature of the title is not clear,
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1 like ownership is not clear or something like that,

2 but in some fashion an impasse has been reached.

3        Q.  And has Rock Island contemplated when it

4 might file a Section 8-509 proceeding other than

5 your -- strike that.

6        Has Rock Island determined or considered

7 when it might file for Section 8-509 authority?

8        A.  Our primary intent after the

9 certification is to obtain voluntary easement

10 agreements for the entirety of the route.

11        Q.  Okay.

12        A.  So we would, we would need to get the

13 certification and then proceed with the voluntary

14 easement acquisition efforts, and then if we made a

15 decision that we needed to pursue eminent domain,

16 then we would.

17        Q.  Okay.  Assume, hypothetically assume the

18 Rock Island's certificate is granted, that its

19 request for order under Section 8-503 is granted

20 and assume further that Rock Island has determined

21 that it has made all reasonable efforts to

22 negotiate a transmission line easement but those

23 efforts have failed but there is still other

24 pending parcels under negotiations.



472

1        Would, what would Rock Island do at that

2 point in time?  Would it come in then for authority

3 under 8-509?

4        A.  So we would need to review the overall

5 schedule at that point and make certain that we

6 allowed enough time to proceed with the eminent

7 domain filings in such a way that we would be

8 confident it would not inhibit construction time on

9 it, and if we got to that point then, then we would

10 go ahead and proceed with eminent domain.

11        Q.  Do you have an understanding of how long

12 a proceeding?  Is there -- strike that.

13        Do you have an understanding as to whether

14 there is a specific time limit for a standalone

15 proceeding filed under Section 8-509?

16        A.  I do not.

17        Q.  Do you have an assumption in your, in

18 the analysis that you just discussed of how long,

19 you know, the process would take?

20        A.  We believe that six months is a

21 comfortable period time for that.

22        Q.  And --

23        A.  It may not -- which is to say it may not

24 require that much time but that's a --
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1        Q.  And at the time if you assume further

2 that an order is entered under Section 8-509, I

3 believe you might have been asked questions, but

4 you understand there might then be further legal

5 proceedings in some court to actually obtain an

6 easement over a parcel where a landowner has not

7 agreed to an easement?

8        A.  That could be the case.  Again, I'm not

9 an attorney, but my understanding is that in those

10 instances there is a rebuttable presumption as to

11 the need for the project at that point.

12        Q.  And do you have an understanding of the

13 timeline for any second or follow-up legal

14 proceedings in Illinois courts to condemn or obtain

15 an easement through means other than voluntary?

16        A.  Not beyond what I have already stated.

17        Q.  Is it Rock Island's intent to wait to

18 determine if it negotiates voluntary agreements

19 with all parcel owners before it comes in under

20 Section 8-509?

21        A.  Again, I can't say with certainty at

22 this point.  I could imagine, I could speculate on

23 scenarios where we might, if it was needed, apply

24 for all parcels that we still needed at once, or I
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1 can see scenarios where we didn't think it was

2 necessary on some, and we found out later we did

3 need to proceed on more than one filing.  I can see

4 multiple scenarios.

5        Q.  Do you believe it is reasonable to

6 assume with a transmission line of this size that

7 there will be a number of property owners for which

8 voluntary easements will not be able to be

9 negotiated?

10        A.  My understanding is that in past

11 certificate cases -- I'm speaking broadly of, you

12 know, pipelines, transmission lines, major

13 infrastructure projects, that sometimes there are

14 instances where eminent domain is not required.

15        At the same time this is a 500-mile project

16 if you include the Iowa segment, and it is not

17 unreasonable to expect that there may be some need

18 to utilize eminent domain in particular as regards

19 to situations where estates may be in probate or

20 scenarios like that where title is not clear.

21        Q.  Are you aware of any transmission line

22 project of comparable length that has not required

23 eminent domain?

24        A.  I have done no review specifically on
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1 that question.

2        Q.  I believe you testified that Rock Island

3 already started negotiations with some property

4 owners; is that correct?

5        A.  That's correct.

6        Q.  Have any of those negotiations reached a

7 point where it is apparent that you will not be

8 able to voluntarily negotiate purchase agreements

9 for transmission line easement?

10        A.  No.

11        Q.  With reference to your testimony about

12 reasonable efforts to acquire transmission line

13 easements through negotiated purchase, do you have

14 a discrete checklist of items that you think that

15 involves?

16        A.  Can you repeat the question?

17        Q.  Sure.  With reference to your testimony

18 that Rock Island will engage in reasonable efforts

19 to acquire transmission line easements through

20 negotiated purchase before it seeks eminent domain

21 authority, do you have a defined list of elements

22 that you think are required to be included in a

23 reasonable negotiation effort?

24        A.  I believe there was a data request
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1 recently where we replied with such similar

2 information.  If you want me to take a moment I can

3 look and see if I got it.  I mean --

4        Q.  Well, without looking at that do you

5 have in mind certain elements of that as you sit

6 here on the stand?

7        A.  Yes.

8        Q.  Could you -- what are those?

9        A.  So as I indicated previously, first you

10 need to make certain that, that who you think the

11 owners are actually are the owners, right?

12        So you need to verify the title, you need to

13 reach out to the landowner, you need to submit the

14 letters as required under 83 Illinois Code Part

15 300.  We have already submitted those.  You attempt

16 to negotiate the easement acquisitions in good

17 faith, and you attempt to do that repeatedly.

18        Q.  Okay.  And does that include, then,

19 making offers, price offers for the easement

20 rights?

21        A.  Certainly.

22        Q.  Certainly.  And does the offer need to

23 be at least at the fair market value of the

24 property to be a reasonable negotiation attempt in
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1 your view?

2        A.  My understanding is that in past

3 infrastructure projects where easements have been

4 acquired, the value of the proposed compensation as

5 a percentage of the value of the easement area has

6 often been a relatively small percentage.

7        In the case of Rock Island, as I indicated

8 in my testimony, we intend to offer a compensation

9 package which is 90% of the fair market value of

10 the easement area plus a structure payment plus the

11 crop damages.

12        Q.  Okay.  So if we hypothetically assume,

13 then, that the easement area has a value of

14 $100,000, that would involve then a offer of 90,000

15 for the easement rights?

16        A.  If we hypothetically assume a value of

17 $100,000 for the easement area, then our

18 compensation proposal would be $90,000 plus the

19 value of the structure payments and structures plus

20 the crop damages, and our understanding is that

21 instances where there is at least one structure on

22 a parcel, that the value will end up being 100% or

23 even more of the fair market value of the land even

24 though that offer level is much higher than is
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1 traditional in this space.

2        Q.  And then as you used value in that

3 answer, were you referring to the fee value of the

4 easement area?

5        A.  Correct.

6        Q.  As part of the negotiations with

7 property owners will Rock Island advise the

8 property owners that it may be able to seek eminent

9 domain to obtain the easement rights?

10           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, I have an objection

11 continuing in this area of questioning.  We have

12 had 20 minutes or more of questions about the

13 process and procedures for obtaining eminent domain

14 authority before the Commission which it's very

15 clear the company has not asked for in this case.

16        So this may all be relevant to a future

17 proceeding if and when it occurs when Rock Island

18 requests eminent domain authority for some parcels,

19 but I don't see how it bears on anything the

20 Commission has to decide in this case and relief

21 that the Commission or that the company has

22 requested.

23           MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, they have also

24 sought relief under Section 8-503, and I think we
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1 are entitled to explore why they are seeking that

2 relief, how it relates to their ability to tell

3 landowners they may seek eminent domain relief and

4 if they only have to go through the final step in

5 the process.

6           JUDGE JONES:  I think much of the line of

7 questioning Mr. MacBride was referring to was to

8 some of the specifics of what offers they intended

9 to make, but now -- but there were no objections to

10 those questions.  This question is a little

11 different, and your response to his objection is a

12 little different also.  I think this particular

13 question with respect to whether they are going to

14 advise the landowners they may eventually seek

15 eminent domain really is a different question than

16 maybe the 20, 20 or 30 that preceded it.  So I

17 don't know that I heard a real response to that

18 one.  So I think that went more to what was going

19 to occur in the near future rather than down the

20 road.  So for that reason I will, I will allow the

21 question.

22        If there are further objections to the

23 overall line of questioning I will deal with them

24 as they occur.  So I would ask the witness to
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1 answer the question if he understands it and if he

2 has an answer.

3        A.  Can you just restate the question?

4           JUDGE JONES:  Well, let's have it read

5 back.

6                  (The reporter read the question.)

7        A.  Rock Island has no current intent to

8 apply for eminent domain, and to the best of my

9 knowledge we have not yet developed our policies

10 regarding what communications landowners may --

11 land agents, sorry, land agents may use to indicate

12 that an eminent domain filing may be coming.

13        Q.  And Mr. Detweiler, would you agree that

14 the code of conduct that's attached to your

15 testimony has no restriction related to mentioning

16 eminent domain authority?

17        A.  I do not believe that the code of

18 conduct mentions eminent domain authority.

19        Q.  Thank you.  You testified that ComEd

20 witness Ellen Lapson, L-A-P-S-O-N, argues that

21 landowners would be harmed if the Commission

22 permits the project but construction does not begin

23 because property values would be depressed for

24 several years, correct?
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1           JUDGE JONES:  What is your -- do you have

2 a citation?

3        Q.  Sure, Exhibit 7.35, page 18, lines 399

4 to 402.

5        A.  Sure.  What was that exhibit number

6 again?

7        Q.  7.35.  It is your surrebuttal.  Page 18.

8        A.  Got ya.  Thank you.  Okay.  What was

9 the question?

10        Q.  Well, the question was whether I

11 correctly read what you had testified.

12        Let me repeat it.  You testified that ComEd

13 witness Ellen Lapson argues that landowners would

14 be harmed if the Commission permits the project but

15 construction does not begin because property values

16 would be depressed for several years.

17        Is that your testimony, correct, on line

18 399?

19        A.  Oh, you are reading the question.

20 Sorry.  Yes, the question is -- I was reading my

21 answer.

22        Q.  You agreed with that character -- with

23 what I just read in your answer, correct?

24        I hate to belabor this.
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1           MR. MACBRIDE:  Wait.  Stop.  This is very

2 confusing.  I object.  The answer in his testimony?

3           MR. FOSCO:  Yes.

4           MR. MACBRIDE:  Which answer in his

5 testimony?  What part of his testimony are you

6 referring to?

7        Q.  You answered -- on line 404 you answered

8 yes to the question, correct?

9        A.  Correct.

10        Q.  That means you accepted the question

11 that I just read to you, correct?

12        A.  I did not have a question in front of me

13 when you read it.  I do not know if when you just

14 read it if you read it word for word as it is

15 stated in my testimony.

16        Do you want to read it one more time?  I

17 apologize for belaboring the point, but I didn't

18 have it.

19        Q.  You did answer that question there

20 correctly?  I mean, you answered it yes, right, in

21 your testimony?

22        A.  The question in my testimony at line 402

23 is if the Commission certificates the project but

24 construction does not begin, would Rock Island
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1 still compensate landowners, to which I answered

2 yes, and then I offered some further explanation.

3        Q.  Well, let me ask you this, then.  Do you

4 disagree with the characterization of Ms. Lapson's

5 testimony at lines 399 to 402?

6        A.  We submitted a data request to ComEd,

7 and ComEd then replied to that and -- oh, yes, so I

8 discussed this further at line, beginning at line

9 417 to further clarify ComEd's position on this.

10           MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, I don't think I

11 received an answer to my question as to what this

12 -- this witness's answered a question that

13 contained that statement as part of the question,

14 and I am just trying to determine if the witness

15 agreed or disagreed with that characterization or

16 if he shares that characterization.

17        A.  So do you want me to --

18        Q.  If you can answer that?

19        A.  I would agree the characterization of

20 Lapson's testimony that she has, that she has

21 argued that landowners would be harmed if the

22 Commission permits the project but construction

23 does not begin.  Is that what you are trying to --

24        Q.  That's what I'm trying to ask you.
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1        A.  Okay.

2        Q.  And you have reviewed Ms. Lapson's

3 testimony; is that correct?

4        A.  Yes, at some point.

5        Q.  And would you agree that the context in

6 which the statement that is cited in your testimony

7 by Ms. Lapson is made that her statement was in the

8 context of identifying harms that might result to

9 the public notwithstanding Rock Island's agreement

10 to condition its certificate on a requirement to

11 obtain full commitments for funds before installing

12 transmission facilities on easement property?

13        A.  I believe she was speculating as to

14 harms that may occur.

15           MR. FOSCO:  Move to strike, your Honor.

16 I just asked him about the context in which she had

17 made her statement and didn't ask him if he thought

18 Ms. Lapson was speculating.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

20           MR. MACBRIDE:  I thought the answer was

21 responsive, but perhaps if Mr. Fosco gave the

22 witness a specific reference to the Lapson

23 testimony, it would be easier for him to answer the

24 question.
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1           MR. FOSCO:  It was provided.  I said, I

2 referenced in his testimony.

3           MR. MACBRIDE:  No, the question -- sorry,

4 if I may respond.  The question asked about the

5 context of Ms. Lapson's testimony.

6           MR. FOSCO:  Right.  There is a citation

7 in his testimony to her testimony.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Can we have the question

9 read back, Ms. Reporter?

10                  (The reporter read the question.)

11           JUDGE JONES:  That's a pretty long

12 question and the word -- any question maybe has the

13 word "context" appearing in it twice, I might give

14 the witness some leeway in answering it,

15 interpreting it and answering it.  So it is a close

16 call, but I will not strike, not strike the answer.

17 So the motion is denied.

18           MR. FOSCO:  Can I have his answer read

19 back?

20                  (The reporter read the answer.)

21        Q.  The portion of Ms. Lapson's testimony on

22 which you commented was addressing the company's

23 agreement to a condition to limit when it will put

24 transmission facilities on easement property,
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1 correct?

2        A.  I don't recall.  If you want to point me

3 to that language.

4        Q.  That's fine if you don't recall.

5        Okay.  On line 402 through 404 of your

6 testimony you respond to Ms. Lapson's testimony by

7 stating that Rock Island would still compensate

8 landowners if the Commission certificates the

9 project but construction does not begin; is that

10 correct?

11        A.  Yes.  I think I further explained that

12 beginning at line 406.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Wait.  Could I have the

14 question read back?

15                  (The reporter read the question.)

16           JUDGE JONES:  Could you start the answer,

17 then we will go from there?

18                  (The reporter read the answer.)

19           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Go ahead.  Go

20 ahead and finish your answer.

21        A.  I further explained that beginning at

22 line 406.  Rock Island pays the landowner 20% of

23 the agreed easement compensation at the time the

24 easement agreement is signed with the remaining 80%
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1 to be paid prior to the construction.  In the

2 unlikely event the Commission issues a certificate

3 for the project but the project is not built, any

4 landowner who was signed an easement agreement with

5 Rock Island will be able to keep the initial

6 payment of 20% of the total easement consideration.

7 Therefore, the landowner will be compensated for

8 dealing with any uncertainty or inconvenience such

9 as postulated by Ms. Lapson.

10        Q.  The compensation you mentioned only

11 applies to landowners who have voluntarily agreed

12 to grant Rock Island an easement, correct?

13        A.  Correct.

14        Q.  And the maximum amount of compensation

15 that could occur is 20% of the agreed value of the

16 easement; is that correct?

17        A.  That's correct.  That is our initial

18 payment.

19        Q.  And isn't it also correct that Rock

20 Island does not have funding today to make those

21 20% payments as we sit here today?

22        A.  Rock Island has sufficient funding to

23 take the steps that are before it in current time.

24 So Rock Island -- I think I have made clear
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1 elsewhere that Rock Island does not intend to

2 really pursue extensive land acquisition efforts in

3 Illinois until after the project is certificated.

4 If I haven't made that clear, I'm happy to make it

5 clear now.

6           MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, I will re-ask the

7 question.  I don't think there was an answer.

8        Q.  But Rock Island will need money to make

9 the 20% payments that you referred to, correct?

10        A.  Correct.

11        Q.  And at the present time Rock Island has

12 only raised money to fund the initial development

13 of the project; isn't that correct?

14        A.  Depending on how you define initial

15 development.

16        Q.  Okay.  And were you present for the

17 testimony by Mr. Skelly?

18        A.  I was present, I believe, for all of the

19 testimony of Mr. Skelly.

20        Q.  And isn't it true that there are no

21 unconditional commitments to provide money, funds,

22 investment in Rock Island that would be used to

23 make those investments as we sit here today?

24        Actually I think I made a misstatement.  Let
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1 me -- as we sit here today there are no binding

2 commitments to make investments in Rock Island that

3 would be used to make the 20% compensation payments

4 down the road; is that correct?

5        A.  Questions of finance are better directed

6 to Mr. Skelly as they already were or to witness

7 Dave Berry.

8        Q.  Nothing you testified about was intended

9 to respond to Ms. Lapson's direct financial

10 concerns, correct, you were just commenting?

11        A.  Can you clarify what you mean by Ms.

12 Lapson's direct financial concerns?

13        Q.  The concerns she expressed in the

14 portion of her testimony that you responded to.

15        A.  I'm not certain I understand the

16 question.

17        Q.  Okay.  Mr. Skelly, I believe earlier you

18 testified that you understood the --

19        A.  You just called me Mr. Skelly.

20        Q.  Promotion.  Mr. Detweiler, I believe you

21 testified earlier that it was your understanding

22 that an order under Section 8-503 would apply to

23 the complete route for the project; is that

24 correct?
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1        A.  Yeah, 503 and 406.

2        Q.  Is it your understanding that an order

3 under Section 8-509 would not apply to the whole

4 route?

5        A.  It is my understanding that Rock Island

6 would be eligible to apply under 509 for all

7 parcels along the route.

8        Q.  Okay.  And assuming that they do apply,

9 is it your understanding that if relief were

10 granted in that instance it would apply to the

11 whole route?

12           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question

13 as confusing.  I don't know what if they did apply.

14           MR. FOSCO:  Well, that was -- he has

15 testified that Rock Island hasn't stated whether it

16 will or will not.  I was trying to accommodate his

17 conditionality.

18           MR. MACBRIDE:  My confusion is to whether

19 the question goes to applying under authority for

20 the entire route or to specific parcels as

21 Mr. Detweiler previously testified.

22            JUDGE JONES:  Do you understand the

23 question?

24        A.  I believe I do.
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Well, I will ask the

2 witness to answer the question if he understands it

3 if he has an answer.

4        A.  So Rock Island has already obtained an

5 easement on a voluntary basis for the project.  So

6 given that we have already obtained easement, i see

7 no circumstance under which we would apply for

8 eminent domain for the entirety of the route.

9        Q.  Okay.  That wasn't the question.  Let me

10 re-ask it, though.

11           JUDGE JONES:  Could you give us an idea

12 how much --

13           MR. FOSCO:  This is basically it, your

14 Honor.

15        Q.  Is it your understanding that if Rock

16 Island files for relief under Section 8-509, that

17 the relief granted in such a petition would not

18 apply to all parcels along the route?

19           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, I object.  I think

20 this has been asked and answered and covered at

21 some length quite awhile ago in his

22 cross-examination.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Yeah, I don't see how this

24 is different than several questions and answers in



492

1 the line of questioning sometime back.  If you can

2 point out where, how this differs.

3           MR. FOSCO:  I will withdraw the question.

4 Thank you, Mr. Detweiler.

5        A.  Thank you.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Davis?

7           MR. DAVIS:  Thank you, your Honor.

8                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

9 QUESTIONS BY MR. DAVIS:

10        Q.  Good afternoon.  My name is Chuck Davis.

11 I'm an attorney for the Farm Bureau.

12           THE WITNESS:  Your Honor, just before we

13 start, this is a little bit after lunch and maybe

14 five minutes for a restroom break?  I don't know

15 how long your questions are.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Off the record.

17                  (Discussion off the record.)

18           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  An

19 off-the-record discussion regarding further status

20 of the cross.  I think we are ready to proceed with

21 Mr. Davis.

22           MR. DAVIS:  Thank you, your Honor.

23        Q.  Am I correct that your title at Clean

24 Line Energy is Director of Development?
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1        A.  That's correct.

2        Q.  And when did you start your employment

3 at Clean Line?

4        A.  Early 2010.

5        Q.  And you have testifited today that as

6 part of your title that you are, you are

7 responsible for the routing team; is that correct?

8        A.  To be a little more complete, I believe

9 what I said is I supervised the management of the

10 routing team in cooperation with others at Clean

11 Line, in particular Dr. Wayne Galli who is our vice

12 president of engineering, something to that effect.

13        Q.  Okay.  So specifically what you said

14 before was you supervise and manage the routing

15 team.  That's an accurate statement?

16        A.  That's -- yes.

17        Q.  And who do you report to at Clean Line?

18        A.  Michael Skelly.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Tell you what, maybe just

20 move the microphone.  If anybody else is having

21 trouble hearing, just let us know.  We will move

22 people or equipment or whatever.

23        Q.  I would just like to quickly go through

24 the places that you listed in your testimony where
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1 you worked prior to Clean Line to get a little

2 background on what you did there.  I will start

3 with the earliest one.  You state Environmental Law

4 and Policy Center.  What exactly did you do for

5 them?

6        A.  For the Environmental Law and Policy

7 Center my activities focused heavily on clean

8 energy advocacy.  So advocating for more energy

9 efficiency, more renewable energy utilization and

10 policy development, advocating for, you know,

11 incentive programs for solar and wind, those kinds

12 of activities.  There was a limited amount of work

13 that was related to clean water, things like that,

14 that were not sort of directly energy related, but

15 it was overwhelmingly energy related.

16        Q.  So this is an interest group, and you

17 served in a policy type capacity?

18        A.  That's correct.  Well, I don't know what

19 you mean by interest group exactly, but it is an

20 advocacy organization.

21        Q.  Okay.  The Illinois Department of

22 Commerce and Economic Opportunity, you stated you

23 were the deputy director and worked with the

24 Governor's office.  What did you do there?
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1        A.  So at DCEO I administered the Bureau of

2 Energy and Recycling, and that included all of the

3 state's bio fuels incentive programs.  So, for

4 instance, if you want to build an ethanol plant and

5 want to get a grant from the state for that, then

6 you would apply under that program.  Similarly the

7 wind and solar, hydro, you know, grant incentive

8 programs, I administered all those, I administered

9 the energy efficiency programs, and during my

10 tenure there was an active legislative process

11 which resulted in the first creation of the energy

12 efficiency portfolio standard in the state.  I was

13 active in that although I left shortly after that

14 law was adopted.

15        Q.  And the American Wind Energy

16 Association, what did you do there?

17        A.  I was Director of State Policy for the

18 American Wind Energy Association.  So I was

19 responsible for, on a nation wide basis, for all of

20 the legislative and regulatory efforts that AWEA

21 was participating in.  AWEA is the American Wind

22 Energy Association.  So I was active in policy

23 development and advocacy for AWEA on behalf of the

24 wind industry.
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1        Q.  Between Grinnell College, graduating

2 with a poli sci degree in '91 and now, other than

3 the places you listed did you work anywhere else?

4        A.  I can refer to my resume.

5        Q.  Sure.

6        A.  What was your -- maybe just restate the

7 question maybe.

8        Did I work anywhere else before ELPC; is

9 that sort of the question?

10        Q.  Yes.  I'm looking to the time period

11 between graduating from college and starting with

12 Clean Line you listed three places you worked.

13        Did you work anywhere else in that time

14 period?

15        A.  You know, some -- I might have done a

16 little waiting tables, moonlighting.  Some of the

17 jobs that I had weren't enormously lucrative.  So I

18 don't think I listed some of those kind of things.

19 Generally summer jobs.  I worked for Cargill doing

20 research, things like that.  I didn't list that

21 kind of thing.

22        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  I think we will get

23 into a few detailed items here.

24        The parcel proposed for the Grundy County
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1 station, to your knowledge Rock Island Clean Line

2 does not own that parcel of property, correct?

3        A.  We have an option agreement on that

4 parcel.

5        Q.  You have an option agreement, but to

6 your knowledge you don't own the parcel?

7        A.  We have not executed the option.

8        Q.  If you would, I'd ask you, please, to

9 refer to your Exhibit 7.31 which is the structure

10 and damages calculation sheet followed by the

11 easement calculation sheet.

12        A.  Yes.

13           MR. MACBRIDE:  Judge, just for

14 clarification that exhibit has been revised.  I

15 assume Mr. Davis is referring to the revised

16 exhibit?

17           MR. DAVIS:  I am.  I'm hopeful I have the

18 correct version in front of me, but --

19        A.  Let's give it a shot, see how it goes.

20        Q.  Sure.  Generally speaking with the, with

21 this, with this document did you put this document

22 together, or was it put together at your direction?

23 Where did this come from?

24        A.  So this document was prepared
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1 cooperatively with Contract Land Staff who is our

2 contracting partner supervising the land agents

3 that we have in the field and our general counsel's

4 office and myself.  So we all, we all worked

5 cooperatively on that.

6        Q.  On the first page under advanced crop

7 damage calculation it says Rock Island shall pay

8 advanced crop damage calculated on one year of loss

9 of 50 feet of anticipated disturbed lands by

10 construction.  Do you see where I am?

11        A.  Yes, I do see that.

12        Q.  These parameters that you came up with,

13 one year of loss, 50 feet, how did you come up with

14 those?

15        A.  One year of loss is the amount of the

16 period of time that we would expect significant

17 crop damages to occur, and 50 feet is an area of

18 the easement that we believe is actually somewhat

19 larger than the area that is actually likely to be

20 disturbed.

21        Q.  How wide is the easement?

22        A.  Well, so the easement could end up being

23 between, in most instances for the DC line between

24 145 and 200 feet.
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1        Q.  Okay.  Why aren't you providing crop

2 damage for the whole easement area?

3        A.  Because we have no expectation that it

4 will impact the entire easement area.

5        Q.  In coming to the determination to use

6 the 50 feet and one year, is this an industry

7 standard in your opinion?

8        Did you derive this from looking at other

9 projects, or how did you get to this, these

10 numbers?

11        A.  If you want to give me a minute, I could

12 look in my -- I believe in my surrebuttal testimony

13 I speak to how we calculate the anticipated amount

14 of area that will actually be impacted.  Kiewit has

15 testified that -- Pierre Adam of Kiewit has

16 testified that he expects the area to be, I don't

17 remember the exact number but less than 20 feet for

18 the access roads, and then additionally around each

19 transmission structure there would be an area that

20 is approximately 100 by 100 feet that would, you

21 know, be the pad for the construction of the, of

22 the structures, and then the pulling areas were

23 slightly larger.  I need to check the exact amount

24 of those, but there are significantly fewer pulling
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1 areas than there are others.

2        So when you aggregate all of those three

3 types of areas together you get an area that is

4 within the easement.  You know, it is less than 50

5 feet.

6        Q.  Okay.  So are you telling me that you

7 were relying primarily on the recommendation of

8 Kiewit; it wasn't on industry standard?

9        A.  Well, actually I think how I started the

10 answer was to say we developed this with Contract

11 Land Staff, and in that sense it is absolutely

12 industry standard.  They're one of the premier

13 easement acquisition firms in the country.

14        Q.  So if I was to tell you that Ameren, on

15 their transmission lines, provides for 150 feet and

16 not 50 feet, would you have any knowledge of that?

17        A.  I do have some knowledge of that.  I

18 believe I have heard that before.  I believe that

19 compensation packages need to be considered in

20 their entirety.  So you need to look at the

21 easement value, and you need to look at or, you

22 know, payment for easement area, and you need to

23 look at the structure payment, and you need to look

24 at the damages payments, and you look at all of
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1 those three things together and need to determine

2 if they are fair.

3        I would, I would state that I can easily

4 imagine different utilities developing different

5 compensation packages that are, that are equally

6 fair even though they are different.

7        Q.  So the answer to my question, you knew

8 or know that Ameren's figures is 150 feet; that's

9 correct?

10        A.  If somebody said it to me in a tavern I

11 wouldn't argue with them, but I don't have firm

12 evidence that I recall on that.

13        Q.  If I was to tell you it was, that their

14 practice is for the entire width of the easement,

15 would you have any knowledge of that?

16        A.  What do you mean by their practices for

17 the entire width of the easement?

18        Q.  Yours is 50 feet?

19        A.  You mean crop damages?

20        Q.  Yes.

21        A.  So I took different transmission line

22 projects, different voltages, different structures

23 are going to have different rights of way.

24        Q.  So my question is whether you had any
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1 knowledge of that?

2        A.  I don't know what Ameren's right of way

3 widths are.

4        Q.  Do you have any idea what any other

5 transmission line companies in Illinois, what they

6 provide for crop damage for if we are talking about

7 about the width, 50 feet of the width of the

8 easement?

9        A.  When we developed this we, as I said, we

10 consulted with Contract Land Staff on this.

11 Contract Land Staff represents a significant number

12 of electric utilities in Illinois and in

13 neighboring states, and we developed this as a

14 package which we believe would be a strong

15 incentive to induce voluntary easement acquisition.

16        So we did review other utility offerings in

17 all regards, but I don't think I can answer your

18 specific question more specifically than that.

19        Q.  I ask you to turn to the second page,

20 and where you have, which is the easement

21 calculation sheet where there is initial payment

22 balance due and extension of the easement

23 compensation deadline.

24        Basically the same question for this 20% on
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1 the initial payment.  How did you get to that

2 number, and do you know if it is industry standard?

3        A.  My belief is actually that it is higher

4 than the industry standard.

5        In answer to your question about how did we

6 get there, in our earlier acquisition efforts we

7 had started with 10% and based on discussions with

8 landowners, we decided to increase that to 20%.

9        Q.  If I was to --

10           JUDGE JONES:  You need to let the witness

11 finish his answer before you start your next

12 question.  Thank you.

13           MR. DAVIS:  Sorry.  I thought he was

14 finished.

15        Q.  If I was to tell you that Ameren's

16 initial payment is 75%, would you have any

17 knowledge of that?

18        A.  I do not have any knowledge of that.

19        Q.  You said you based it on industry

20 standard.  What other companies did you compare it

21 to?

22        A.  As I mentioned we compared -- well,

23 actually when we were talking about industry

24 standards we were talking about the crop damage
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1 calculations.

2        Q.  Actually in the answer you just gave me

3 you said industry standards.  That was the word

4 that you used.

5        A.  Okay.  What is the current question on

6 the table?

7        Q.  You testified previously that 20% for

8 the initial payment was based upon industry

9 standards, and after we discussed what I

10 represented about the Ameren 75% payment.

11        Now is it not industry standard, the 20%, or

12 what is your answer?

13        A.  My understanding and I believe what I

14 said before was that 20% is, if anything, high by

15 industry standards, but, you know, some utilities

16 are in very different situations.  Some utilities

17 --

18        Q.  Can you name -- sorry.  Are you finished

19 with your answer?

20        A.  The appropriateness of compensation and

21 how these things are structured depends on specific

22 instances.

23        Q.  So specific instances as to the property

24 owner or as to the project, or what do you mean by
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1 that?

2        A.  The project.  We'll, eventually

3 potentially both, but project is what I meant.

4        Q.  Potentially both.  So let's talk about

5 that.  I apologize.  I'm going over my ten minutes

6 here.

7        If we are talking about the 20%, can you

8 name another company that offers 20% for the

9 initial payment?

10        A.  I believe there are utilities in Iowa

11 that offer 20%, but I would need to check that.  I

12 believe that other utilities have offered less than

13 that in the past, but I would need to verify the

14 percentages.

15        Q.  The previous page about the 50 feet crop

16 damage compensation, would you also testify that

17 that is a project to project issue; that there is

18 not a standard across the industry?  I will add

19 that to my question.

20        A.  So certainly an electric transmission

21 line project is different than a pipeline type

22 project where the disturbance is going to be much

23 greater as a percentage of the easement area.

24        Q.  I prefer just to limit the question to
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1 transmission lines.

2        A.  So do you want to repeat the question?

3           JUDGE JONES:  You need to let the witness

4 finish his answer.  If you need to make a motion

5 with respect to that or whatever you need to do,

6 but you need to let the witness finish his answer.

7           MR. DAVIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I will

8 restate.

9        Q.  Previously you stated that the 20% total

10 easement consideration initial payment is, it can

11 change from project to project depending on the

12 project.

13        So I asked essentially the same question as

14 to the 50 feet advanced crop damage calculation;

15 whether the width of the payment is also a project

16 to project consideration:

17        A.  So yeah, there are lots of different

18 electric transmission infrastructure projects out

19 there and lots of different situations, and we

20 believe in this case this is, this is more than

21 reasonable.  But I can imagine other instances

22 where, where something else could be reasonable.

23        Q.  So although the 20% and 50 feet may be

24 less than what other transmission companies offer,
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1 you believe it is appropriate for this project?

2        A.  Without confirming what other utilities

3 may be paying, yes, I believe that this is fair for

4 this project.

5        Q.  Do you have any idea if Contract Land

6 Staff also does work for Ameren?

7        A.  They do.

8        Q.  I have a few particular questions about

9 the testimony that I hope to march through quickly

10 here.

11        Is there a circumstance where Rock Island

12 would not compensate a landowner for damage caused

13 by Rock Island activities to install the line or

14 perform any other work that damaged the property or

15 otherwise harmed the landowner?

16           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question.

17 That's just completely broad and undefined,

18 requires speculation.  If Mr. Davis wants to ask

19 about specific examples, that would be fair, but

20 the question is there any circumstance in which

21 there would be no compensation seems too unlimited

22 for the witness to be able to answer reasonably.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

24           MR. DAVIS:  It would be difficult and
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1 lengthy to go through an array of potential ways

2 that Rock Island entering a farmer's land could

3 damage it.  I am asking if there is any bright line

4 where Rock Island would not pay for something that

5 occurred on the property.

6          JUDGE JONES:  Could I have the question

7 read back, Ms. Reporter?

8                  (The reporter read the question.)

9           JUDGE JONES:  I will allow the question

10 with this comment, ask the witness to answer it if

11 he understands the question and if he has an

12 answer.

13        A.  So Rock Island provided our transmission

14 line easement agreement, and Section 3 of that, the

15 beginning of it states Rock Island will repair or

16 pay at Rock Island's options the landowner or its

17 tenants for any damage to landowners or landowners'

18 tenants improvements, livestock or crops as a

19 result of Rock Island exercising its rights under

20 this agreement.

21        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  I do have an example.

22 I think because it is not on the damages

23 calculation sheet we discussed before, will Rock

24 Island pay for the diminution and fair market value
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1 of the property outside of the easement if there is

2 any damage done?

3        A.  The question appears to be two questions

4 to me.  You are asking about compensating for

5 damage to the remainder --

6        Q.  Of the farm property?

7        A.  -- of the farm property for -- okay.  So

8 are you envisioning a construction truck traversing

9 an area of the landowner's parcel that is outside

10 of the easement area?

11        If that is what you are envisioning and that

12 traffic damaged crops, then yes, definitely, Rock

13 Island would compensate for that.

14        Q.  Okay.  Let's talk about the other half

15 of that.  You are correct.  There is two separate

16 issues there.

17        If there are damages that are caused within

18 an easement area that causes diminution of value to

19 the rest of the farm property because of the value,

20 because of the damage that occurred in the

21 easement, will Rock Island pay for that diminution

22 of value of damages?

23        A.  In agricultural areas Rock Island does

24 not believe there will be any.
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1        Q.  So is the answer yes or no?

2        A.  The answer is the answer.  We don't

3 believe there will be any damages in agricultural

4 areas, so we are not going to compensate for any.

5        Q.  Okay.  So no is the answer?

6        A.  Correct.

7        Q.  Do you believe that to be industry

8 standard?

9        A.  I do.

10        Q.  If I was to tell you that Ameren offers

11 these amounts as compensation, would you have any

12 knowledge of that?

13           MR. MACBRIDE:  I object to the question

14 as unclear.  I don't know what these amounts is

15 referring to.

16           MR. DAVIS:  I'd be happy to clarify.

17        Q.  If I was to represent that Ameren pays,

18 under the facts that I laid out in the previous

19 questions, for diminution of value for the rest of

20 the farm property for damage occurring on the

21 easement as a consequence of a circumstance of,

22 well, the transmission provider, would you have any

23 knowledge of that?

24        A.  I would not, no.
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1        Q.  On page 10 of your rebuttal testimony,

2 you can refer to it if you want, but I am going to

3 read exactly what it says.  Rock Island -- this

4 starts at, I don't have a line but in the middle of

5 page 10.  Rock Island will compensate landowners

6 for damage to drainage tiles or for repair and

7 replacement of damaged tiles for a reasonable

8 period of time after completion of construction

9 even if damage does not manifest for a period of

10 years provided that damage can reasonably be

11 determined to be attributable to Rock Island's

12 construction activities.

13        Do you have any opinion on what a reasonable

14 amount of time is in this context?

15        A.  It is -- reasonable amount of time will

16 depend on the specific facts of the instance as

17 they are presented.

18        Q.  So in the circumstance of, let's say an

19 example there is a drought and won't be able to

20 know about damage for years, that would be taken

21 into context in deciding what to do?

22        A.  That is a very good example.  Yes.

23        Q.  Do you have any standard what must be

24 shown to prove that the damage can reasonably be
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1 determined to be attributable to Rock Island

2 construction activities?

3        A.  It will depend on the specifics.  It

4 will be negotiated on a case by case basis.

5        Q.  With respect to your testimony about

6 aerial applications, if there is a detriment, an

7 alleged detriment to the fair market value of the

8 farm, a farm based upon changes in aerial

9 application, will Rock Island reimburse for those

10 amounts?

11        A.  Rock Island does not believe there will

12 be any diminution in the value of the land as a

13 result of our easements in agricultural areas.  So

14 relating to aerial application, that doesn't --

15 there would be no payment regarding that.

16        Q.  What if a line prohibits aerial

17 application on properties neighboring the easement;

18 would there be compensation to the neighbors for

19 that obstruction?

20        A.  I'm not clear on when such an instance

21 would occur, but Rock Island compensates for

22 damages to property owners who are on the line.  So

23 the answer is no.

24        Q.  You testified that part of your



513

1 responsibilities as Director of Development was

2 that you are in charge of managing the siting

3 process.  I'm going to define your pre, any job

4 that you had before Clean Line as your pre Clean

5 Line employment.  At --

6        A.  I didn't hear one word you said,

7 something siting process.

8        Q.  In your testimony, your original

9 testimony at line 11 you said as one of the things

10 you are responsible for, I'm responsible for

11 managing the siting process?

12        A.  Okay.  The managing the siting process.

13 Okay.

14        Q.  During your pre Clean Line employment

15 you never managed the siting process for your

16 previous employers, did you?

17        A.  As I stated previously, I was Director

18 of State Policy for the American Wind Energy

19 Association, and siting issues come up very, very

20 frequently in state legislatures as it relates to

21 wind farms.  So I was familiar with siting issues

22 and endangered species issues, habitat issues.  I

23 was very familiar with issues from that work.

24        Similarly from my time at the Environmental
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1 Law and Policy Center I was very active in

2 renewable energy advocacy.  So we were advocating

3 for renewable portfolio standards in states across

4 the Midwest, and so siting issues would come up in

5 those contexts as well, and I was often present and

6 would speak to those various concerns.

7        Q.  In none of those instances there was a

8 transmission project that you were involved with

9 siting, though, correct?

10        A.  I was involved with studies that

11 involved transmission line projects, and there were

12 discussions of siting.

13        Q.   You also stated that on line 11 that

14 you're responsible for managing permitting efforts.

15        You never, in your previous employment,

16 obtained any permits a for transmission line

17 project, correct?

18        A.  So siting and permitting are very

19 similar sets of issues, so I would append my last

20 answer to this answer.  However, I did not

21 specifically seek permits for a specific project

22 prior to my tenure at Clean Line.  I believe that

23 gets to the question you are asking.

24        Q.  On line 44 of your testimony you
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1 acknowledge that you are working to obtain

2 necessary real property rights.

3        In your previous employment you never were

4 responsible for obtaining real property rights or

5 negotiating the purchase of property, correct?

6           MR. MACBRIDE:  Objection,

7 mischaracterizes the testimony at the line cited by

8 Mr. Davis.

9           MR. DAVIS:  I would be happy to strike

10 that, provide more foundation.

11           JUDGE JONES:  What do you think,

12 Mr. Davis?  Going to ask a different question?

13           MR. DAVIS:  I can do that.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Sure.

15        Q.  There was a series of questions before

16 with Mr. Fosco where you discussed obtaining

17 easements and easements basically.  I am sure you

18 remember those questions, correct?

19        A.  Some more than others, but yeah.

20        Q.  This falls under your responsibility in

21 negotiating these easements; is that correct?

22        A.  What does this refer to?

23        Q.  Obtaining easements from landowners

24 falls within your responsibility in your position;
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1 is that correct?

2        A.  So I mentioned earlier that I directly

3 supervised the Rock Island team and that I manage

4 other operations for Clean Line cooperatively with

5 other specialists.  I believe I also earlier

6 specifically mentioned Ms. Deann Lanz who is our

7 director of land services or has a title similar to

8 that.  So I work very closely with Deann on

9 managing the easement acquisition process.

10        Q.  So your testimony is that you manage an

11 individual that acquires real property at your

12 direction?

13        A.  No, that wasn't my testimony.  So Deanne

14 Lanz is the director which means she is the same

15 level of the company that I am.  I am Director of

16 Development, she is Director of Land Services.  So

17 Deann does not report to me.  So we work

18 cooperatively on easement acquisition strategies.

19 That's the point I'm trying to make.

20        Q.  In your previous employment you never

21 had to obtain easements for your employer, correct?

22        A.  That's correct.

23        Q.  In your previous employment you never

24 had engineers working directly for you; is that
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1 correct?

2        A.  That is not correct.

3        Q.  Did you ever have engineers working for

4 you to build a project for your previous employers?

5        A.  When I worked for the Department of

6 Commerce and Economic Opportunity we administered,

7 as I mentioned before, numerous incentive programs.

8 Those incentive programs were also, were often for

9 large facilities such as ethanol plants or wind

10 farms, and DCEO does have engineers who would

11 assist in the review of those applications to see

12 if we believed that those applications were good

13 candidates for funding, and I would supervise those

14 engineers in their reviews of those applications.

15        Q.  So this project that you are referring

16 to wasn't constructed by DCEO or whatever?

17        A.  No, no, my context is DCEO was reviewing

18 grant applications.  So we were reviewing whether

19 we thought they were appropriate for state support.

20        Q.  So you supervised engineers that

21 reviewed potential projects?

22        A.  That's correct.

23        Q.  You have never worked for a company

24 before Clean Line that built a transmission line,
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1 correct?

2        A.  That is correct.

3        Q.  Prior to working for Clean Line you

4 never worked for a company that transmitted

5 electricity; is that correct?

6        A.  I believe that is correct.

7        Q.  Am I correct that this project in its

8 total is a $1.8 billion project?

9        A.  Roughly.

10           MR. DAVIS:  I have no further questions.

11           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Davis.

12 Redirect?

13           MR. MACBRIDE:  One second.  Do you need a

14 break?

15           THE WITNESS:  I do.

16           MR. MACBRIDE:  All right.  I think the

17 witness needs a break.  We can combine that with

18 five minutes for redirect.

19           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  We will hereby

20 break for five minutes.

21                 (A break was taken.)

22           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Is

23 there redirect, Mr. MacBride?

24           MR. MACBRIDE:  Yes, just a little bit,



519

1 Judge, if I may, if I may proceed.

2                 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

3 QUESTIONS BY MR. MACBRIDE:

4        Q.  Mr. Detweiler, you were asked a number

5 of questions about the agricultural impact

6 mitigation agreement and its relationship to the

7 easement agreements that would be signed with

8 landowners.

9        Just to clarify, is it your understanding

10 that the provisions of the AIMA are obligations and

11 commitments of Rock Island that it intends to

12 adhere to on all land on which it constructs the

13 line?

14        A.  That is correct.

15        Q.  And that would be true regardless of the

16 manner through which Rock Island has acquired an

17 easement on a particular piece of property?

18        A.  That is correct.

19        Q.  You were asked some questions about an

20 example in which a tree that had not yet reached

21 the stage of being marketable timber was cut down

22 within an easement.  Do you recall that?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  Again, just to try and clarify the back
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1 and forth on that, is it your position that Rock

2 Island's proposed easement compensation package

3 including payment for 90% of the fair market value

4 of the easement would compensate for the loss of

5 that tree?

6        A.  Yes, as I have said in combination with

7 the structure payments and other crop damage

8 payments.

9        Q.  I would like to refer you to your

10 easement compensation sheet which is exhibit, Rock

11 Island Exhibit 7.31 Revised.

12        A.  Easement --

13        Q.  Exhibit 7.31 Revised.

14        A.  I think I took it out.  Oh, I got it.

15 Okay.

16        Q.  All right.  Referring you to the bottom

17 of page 1 you were asked a number of questions

18 about the section that's captioned Advance Crop

19 Damage Calculations.  Do you recall those

20 questions?

21        A.  Yes, I do.

22        Q.  All right.  Can you tell us what is

23 meant on this exhibit by advance crop damage

24 calculations?
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1        A.  Advance means paid prior to

2 construction.  So in the event that there are --

3 that damages actually end up being larger than the

4 advance payment, then Rock Island would be willing

5 to compensate, provide additional damage payments.

6        Q.  For the excess of the actual damages

7 over the advance payment?

8        A.  That's correct.

9        Q.  Thank you.  Now, finally in this

10 question I am not asking you for a legal opinion,

11 I'm just asking you for your understanding of the

12 company's plan and intentions.

13        Is it your understanding that if Rock Island

14 found it necessary to request, to come back to the

15 Commission to request eminent domain authority for

16 any parcel along the route in Illinois, that you

17 would present to the Commission information to

18 demonstrate that an impasse had occurred with

19 respect to each parcel for which you sought eminent

20 domain authority?

21        A.  That is correct.

22           MR. MACBRIDE:  We have no further

23 questions.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Is there recross?
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1           MR. FOSCO:  No, your Honor.

2           MR. PHILLIPS:  No recross, your Honor.

3           MR. DAVIS:  No, your Honor.

4           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

5 That concludes the questions for the witness.

6 Thank you, sir.

7           THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

8                  (Discussion off the record.)

9           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Let

10 the record show an off-the-record discussion for

11 the purposes indicated.  One item was whether

12 anyone had an objection to the BOMA witness,

13 B-O-M-A, all caps, being cross-examined while he

14 would be in the Chicago room by video connection.

15 I believe that was not a problem with the others.

16 Let me make sure.

17        Anyone have an objection to that?

18        Let the record show they do not.

19        Then in a similar vein there was staff

20 witness Rashid.  I believe that the plan, which if

21 no one has opposition, would be for that witness to

22 also be in Chicago and be cross-examined by video

23 connection.  Is that right, Ms. Ericson?

24           MS. ERICSON:  Yes, that's correct.  Thank
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1 you.

2           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Anyone have

3 opposition to that?

4        All right.  Let the record show they do not.

5 So that will be, that will be allowed.

6        Before I forget, again, starting time for

7 Wednesday, the preference of the parties was 9:30.

8 So is there any objection to starting at 9:30?

9        Let the record show there is not.

10        I think there is one other thing.  That

11 might be Mr. Olivero is going to move in some of

12 the staff testimony for which it was, there was no

13 cross-examination scheduled; is that right?

14           MR. OLIVERO:  That's correct, your Honor.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Are you ready to do that?

16           MR. OLIVERO:  I am, your Honor.

17           JUDGE JONES:  Do you have your, do you

18 have your exhibit list in front of you, too?

19           MR. OLIVERO:  I do.

20           JUDGE JONES:  Do you have an extra copy

21 for the court reporter?

22           MR. OLIVERO:  No, but you can have this

23 one here actually.  I have --

24           JUDGE ROBINSON:  Well, you can give her
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1 that one after you finished if you want to have it

2 in front of you.

3           MR. OLIVERO:  All right.  That's fine.

4           JUDGE JONES:  You can go ahead.

5           MR. OLIVERO:  Thank you, your Honor.

6 Staff would move for admission into the record of

7 ICC Staff Exhibit 4.0 which is the verified

8 statement of Alan Pregozen which consists of a

9 three-page statement with the appropriate

10 verification.  That document was filed on the

11 Commission's e-Docket system June 25th, 2013.

12        And also staff would move for admission into

13 the record of ICC Staff Exhibit 2.0 which is the

14 direct testimony of Daniel G. Kahle which consists

15 of a cover page, table of contents and four pages

16 of Q and A.  This document was filed on the

17 Commission's e-Docket system June 25th, 2013.

18        Staff also moves for the admission of

19 Mr. Kahle's ICC Staff Exhibit 5.0 which is the

20 rebuttal testimony of Daniel D. Kahle -- that's

21 K-A-H-L-E -- which consists of a cover page and two

22 pages of questions and answers.  That document was

23 filed on the Commission's e-Docket system October

24 15th, 2013.
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1        And finally staff would move for admission

2 into the record of ICC Staff Exhibit 5.1 which is

3 the affidavit of Daniel G. Kahle, and that was

4 filed on the Commission's e-Docket system on

5 December 5th.

6        That is all we would have, your Honor, for

7 the moving in of testimony through affidavits.

8           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Don't have to

9 give me any other information, just give me the

10 identification numbers for those, for those again.

11           MR. OLIVERO:  Well, for Dan Kahle --

12           JUDGE JONES:  You don't need to give a

13 name, just gave me the string of numbers.

14           MR. OLIVERO:  It is 2.0, 5.0 and 5.1 and

15 then 4.0.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Now, are there affidavits?

17           MR. OLIVERO:  Just for Mr. Kahle because

18 Mr. Pregozen was a verified statement.

19           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So there is

20 affidavits already on file?

21            MR. OLIVERO:  For Mr. Kahle and

22 Mr. Pregozen.

23           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.  Any

24 objection to that?
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1           MR. MACBRIDE:  No, sir.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show the ICC

3 staff exhibits are admitted into the evidentiary

4 record, 2.0, 4.0, 5.0, and 5.1. I will not mention

5 the dates.  Mr. Olivero did that in his motion.

6 They are admitted as they appear on e-Docket on the

7 filed dates that were just identified by Mr.

8 Olivero in his motion.

9                  (ICC Staff Exhibits 2.0, 4.0, 5.0

10                  and 5.1 admitted.)

11           JUDGE JONES:  Anything further on that?

12        Let the record show there is not.

13        Anything else to take up today before we

14 conclude?

15        All right.  At this time then let the record

16 show today's hearing is concluded.  Thank you for

17 your participation today and yesterday.  At this

18 time we will continue this matter to Wednesday,

19 December 11th, at the hour of 9:30 a.m.  Thank you.

20           (Hearing concluded at 3:38 p.m.)

21

22

23

24
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